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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

ABQUT U5

International Entertainment Holdings Limited {the Company} is an intemational holding group majority owned
by Frovidence Equity Partners. The principal activity of the Company i3 to hokd companies that camy out
complementary activities across the value chain of live entertainment and theatrerelaled activity, principally
in the UK, USA, and Confinentat Ewrope [the Group). The Group considers that these markets have significant
potantial for growih and forms the basis for the Group's strategy of further growth and expansion.

The Company's main halding is The Ambassador Theatre Group Limited [(ATG). ATG s a globdl leader in live
entertginment and is a fully infegrated operator aoross the entire live entertainment value chain, with activities
in yenue operations, ticketing, marketing services and caontent praduction. ATG operates in Gemany through
its subsidiary sMehrl-BB Entertainment GmibH (Mehrl-BB), which was formed by the merger of the Mehrl Group
{acquired in Moy 2018] with the B8 Entertainment Group of companies facquired in May 2015).

OVERVIEW ON BUSINESS OPERATIONS

ATG is focused on providing g high level of service to two groups of customers; producers and audisnce
members. By making the end-to-end "cusicmer journey” of our audience top priorty, we wit ensure that our
venues are the best stages for the highest guality conlent developead by both our own in-house as well as 39
party producers,

Venue Operalions

The aim of our venue operations division is to pravide a great service to both our producsss and cur audience
members. We generafe revenues from renting our vanues to productions os well as seling food and

pevergges to our audience membars.

Owver the lasi finoncial year, 1o hels mitigate the impact of COVID-19, the Group's copitd expendiure has
been rephased and pricdtized on estential maintenance. However, as we move towards the easing of
governmeant restrictions and re-opening of venues, invastment inimproving the quality of venues o enhance
our customers' thealregeing experience will resume. Many of the Group's vanueas are historic buildings
which have an important significonce in their local areas. investment in the maintenance of these buildings
is central to the Group's custodianship of them for the beanefits of future generations of audiences. The
development and improvement of these venues to meet the needs and expectations of taday's audiences
and producers are equdlly important.

In the UK, the Group owns ond operatas some of the most iconic venues wilh 10 in London and 21 more
acrass the country. The Group operates 15 thaalres in the USA, Including two Broadway venues {the Lyric
and the Hudson}, and 13 theatres in other U5 cities, The Group also operates five venues in Gemmany as part
of the Metr!-BB Entertainment Group.

Ticketing

The Group operates the lorgest heatre ticketing business in the UK and sells the majority of tickets to shows
in ils venues through its own ticketing businesses,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

Content Production

A key shrategy of tho Group's Content Production division is to find, secure, and produce high-quality shows
for both ATG and third-party venves. The Group develops and produces new contend im addition to co-

producing, investing in and presenting content from independent producers.
Markeling

The Group through its subsidiary companies of AKA Group, headquadered in London and BB Group, head-
guartered in Mannheim, Germany, is able o offer ¢ wide range of marketing services, which ore In-line and
complementary to the Group’s overal strofegy. AKA, a global entertainmenl marketing ond medio
advertising agency for the live enfertainment. arts and culturat ingustries has offices in Loncdon, Manchester,
New Tork and Australia. AKA hos continued to support the Group's shrategy of developing independent yet
complementary business nes to provide a fullservice experience to clients within the theatre ond live
entertainment industry. Furthermaore, AKA has seen its business offering extend further afisld with clients not

directly inked to the live entartainment indusiry, such as museums, galleries, garders and zoolegical centres,

Alongside its production services, Mehr-BB Group, via ifs sulbsidiary ESMS, provides marketing services for live

entertainment productions in Germaon-speaking Eurcpe.
REVIEW OF FY21

The Group's oporations were significantiy disrupted In FY21 due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, All jurisdictions in
which the Group gperates had social distancing restictions which reguied the closure of all ils venues.
Throughout the year, the Group has been focused on conserving cash through cost restructuring ond supplier
negotiations as wel as implementing availoble govemment support, in the fom of furlough schemes, tax

payment deferrals, business rates refief and gronts,

The Group has renegotiated its covenants with ifs lenders and extended the maturity of its senior loans to 2025,
The Group also raised additional funds from a new minority investor, Amplity Copital Investment Pte. Ltd, which
is owned by Siivericks Parlners.

The Group has pastponed the maojorily of its programming into the future and gs @ result, has retgined g high
proportion of the balance of advances saies of fickats sold pre-COVID-1¥ shut down.,

The loss befare tax for the period was £147.1 milion {2020 £33.9 milion}. Current yaar and prior year losses org
attributable to the impact of COVID-1% on the Group.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REFPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

KEY PERFORMANCE INDIC ATORS (KPis)

" Fihancial
Revenve Operating loss
£4).6m (E94.6m)
. {2020: £2.2m operating
[2C20: £476.7m) profi)

- o TR

Non-financial KPis;

Due to the closure of venueas throughout FY21, the non-financial KPls usually used to monitor the business
have not been considered by management, with focus instead on cash management and ¢ost reduction.

Fimancial KPis:

- Revenue of £41.6m decreased 21R from 2020 os COVID-19% forced the closure of all of the Group's

venuas for the full year. Pleass refer 1o note 3 for geographical anaolysis of revenue.

- The cperating loss of £24.6m results from the reduction In revenue, offset by lower cost of sales and

action taken by management to reduce operating expenses,

FINANCIAL POSITION AND CASH FLOW

The position of the Group at the pericd-end is set out in the consolidated statement of financial position on
pages 40 and 41, the consolidoted statement of cash flows on page 44 and in the related notes on pages 45
to 89,

- Cash from operating activilies was a net cash outiiow of £108.5 million [2020; inflow of £42.2 million). This
reflects the impact of CCGVID-19 on the year's trading, with an opeorating loss of £94.4 million {2020:
operating profit £2.2 milion] ond negative net working capital cash fliow of £43.5 milion {2020: positive
E£10.7 milliony.

- Investing cash flows include £14.8 million [2020: £54.1 million} of capital axpenditure. Copital expenditure
was minimized in the year to preserve cash. This was offsel by £1.4 milion (2020: £1.9 milion) net

recoupment in show investments in the period.

- HNet debt, including finance lease Tabilities. s conslstent with pricr year ot £544. 1Tmillion {2020 £564.2
millian}. New shareholder loans of £135.0 million were ralsed, offset by repayment of £85.5 million of bank
loans and £11.1 miliion of finance |lease repaymants. Closing cash was £185.4 millon, up from £139.1 milliaon
at March 2020, and included a £2.6 million escrow bolance {2020: £8.8 million).

- New shares were issued during the year, raising £151.3 milion,

3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Leverage and liquidify

The Group agreed with its lenders temporary amendments to the EBITDA calculation used 1o test #s leverage
covenant, which take into account the impaoct of reduced frading. Under this omended agreement the
Group complied with its net leverage covenant thwoughout the period.

The net leverage covenant specifically focuses on the drawn senicr debl of the Group 50 exciudes
shareholder ioans and finance lease liabiities (refer to note 19).

The cash balkance wsed for leverage covenant tasting excludes the cosh balance held by subsidiaries outside
of the banking group of £85.8m at 27 March 2021 [2020: Nil).

Net debd for cavaenant purposes at 27 March 2021 was £310.3 million {£358.0 million of senior debt plus £6%.4
milion of revolving credil facilily nel of cash [excluding escrow) of £117.1 milion]. This was £13.0 millfon highear
than the prior year ending balance of £297.3 miliion,

Casn As at 27 March 202}, the Group had cosh and cash equivalents of £185.4 million [2020:
£13%.1 million), including escrow occounts which are held for use primariy in connection
with specific productions, The Group also had additional available revolving facilities of
£5.6 million (2020: £5.4 miliion). The cash balance increased by £46.4 million in the period,
while freely available ¢cash increased by £52.7 million,

£m For the 52 week
petlod ended
27 March 2021

Operating cash Rows {108.5)

investing cash flows 113.3)

Financing cash flows 170.2

Net cash flows 48.4

impact of foreign exchange 2.0

Movement in cosh balance 454
4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Borrowings  The Graup has total available bark facililies of £433.0 milion, of which £5.4 million remains
undrawn at the perod end,

The senior debt is secured by o debenture over the majorty of the assets of the Group.
The senior facilities agreement also raquires the Group to comply with certain covenants,

As at 27 March 2021, the Group was in compliance with its covenants.

The Group alsa has loans from its shareholders totalling £13%.2m, including accrued interest
(2020: £Nil}. Interast on shareholder loans is non-cash paying and accrues af fixed rates
ranging betweaen 4.0% and 10.0%.

The Group has a finance lease creditor of £166.1 mitlion (2020: £177.2 miliion].

The maturity of the dabt Is shown I nates 19, 20 and 28 ta the financial statemends,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent 1o the period end, the Group compleled the acquisition of Nederlander Detroit LT and
Brocdway San Francisce LLC for total consideration of £173.2 milion. This acquisition odds two theatres in San

Francisco and three in Detroit 1o the Group's portfolio of owned and operated venues.

Subsequeni to the petiod end the Group received €54 million of COVID- 19 related government grani incorme
from the German gavemmenl,

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

The strong fundamentals thot underpin the theatrical industry combined with the quality of our porifolic of
venues contribute to the Directors’ confidence in the long term growth of the business in future yeais. in order
to withstand the curent challenges of COVID-1?, the Group will continue to judiciously monitor tts cost base
and preserve and protect lis Nguidily positian whilst ensunng thot we are adequately prepared for a speedy
refurn to operations,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CORPORAIE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

The Group recognises the imporfance of it environmentol responsibilitles, monitors its Impact on the
environment, and designs and implements appropriate policies to minimise any damage thaot might ke

cawvsed by the Group's activities.

The Group seeks to reduce the environmental impact of its operations through responsible resource
procurement and consistently 1hrives to efiminate waste with aur supply chain partners. Specificaly, wa are
driving efficiert energy procurement, diverting all of our waoste from landfill and where possible, instaliing
enargy efficient systems in our venues. As an organisation aur environmental Impact i a key piltar of our
averarching Corporate Social Responsibility strategy.

The closure of the Group's venues throughout the year caused the majority of its ongoing environmental
impact initiatives to be paused, However, the closure of all verves and offices has in itself reduced the Group's

environmentatimpact,
Greenhouse Gas Reporting

The Group is required by the Companies Act 2004, Regulations 2013 t¢ measure ond reports its direct and

indirect UK greenhouse gas emissions.

Direct greanhouse gos emissions are fram sources that are owned or conkrolled by the Group. Indirect
greenhouse gas emissions are from sources owned or controlled by other entities but are o consequence of

the activities of the Group.

The methodology used fo calculate emisslans s based on the Greenhouse Gas Protocol’s corporate
Accounting and Repoarting Standard approach. The UK govemment conversian facteor guidance [Y"DEFRA™)
was used to calculate emission facton.

Gresnhouse gas reporting is split betwaen three categories, The expianations for thase are as follows;

Scope \: Direct emissions controllad by the Group. This includes gos and oil used for heating as well as emissions

from company cars {ooth owned and leased).
Scape 2 Indirect emissicns exclusively composed of purchased etechicity within the Group.

Scope 3: Indirect emissions which occur dtf sowrces which arg not owned or controlied by the Group and
which gre not classed o3 scope 2 emissions. This includes emissions from rental vehicles where the Group
purchased the fuel.

Sensitivity: Intarnal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Absolute UK carbon emissions (tonnes of COy Year ended 27 March 2021
Scope | T ' 203586
Scope 2 756,87
Scope 3 792
‘ 3,000.45
20

UK carbon intensty
Tonnes of CO: per £'000 of revenus ’ 0.4
Jonnes of COz per employee 0.89

QUR PEOPLE

Number of employeas ot 27 March 2021 Women Men Total
Directors of the company 1 4 5
Other senior management 20 43 63

Employees 2.205 1,794 3,994

The Group complies with all relevant fegisiotion Including those specifically targeted at preventing
discrimination. Such principles are embedded hrough the organisation by the requisite policies. The Group
i committed to ensuring the heaith, safelty and welfare of its employees as far a5 s regsonably practicable.
The Group seeks to ensure that stolutory duties are met at all times and that it operates effective nheaith and
safety management policies and procedures.

The Group's policy is to consuld and discuss with employees, through unions. staff councils, meetings and
company-wide surveys, matters likely to affect emplovees' interests. Information on matters of concem to
employees is given through information bulteting and reports which seek 1o achisve a common awarenass on

the part of afl employees of the financial and economic factors affecling the Groug's performance.

The Group continves 1o run its “Be & Star" and “Be a Star Manager" training programmes, focusing on Front of
House and Box Office staff from when they join the Group, developing their skils 1o improve customer
expargnce, and frther olong the ine, the key aspects of pecpie management, The Group Gl runs o two
year “Rising Star” programme for some of our highest potential junicr staff as well as a leadership course for
senior managers “Leading Lighis®. in FY20, we lounched our sixth cohort of Rising Stars, and a thid Leading
Ligihts Closs.

The Group's policy is to recruit disabled workers for those vaconcies that they are able to fil. All necessary
ossistance with initial iraining courses is given. Once employed. o coreer plan is developed 50 as fo ensure
suitable opporiunities for each disabled person. Arrangements are made, wherever possible, for refraining

4
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT [continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

amployesas who bacome disabled, to enable them to perform work identified as appropriate ta their optitudes

and abilities.

we continue to support intermal engagement inttiatives such as International Womaen's Day. Pride and Mental
Health Awarenass week, with more people becoming involved in all geographies.

Soclal and Comatunity Involvement

The Group recognises that regional theatres, both in the UK and USA, are rooted in the heart of their local

communities.

Many of thae UK regional theatres have Credtive Learning departments which take a leading role in
contributing to the social cohesion of thelr communities in partnership with charities, trusts and crganisations
nationwide, including several local authonties ond further education partners. Cver the coune of a year,

Creative Leaming can boast more than 70,000 participants of ol ages and abilities throughout the UK,

Feople of a wide variety of agss and abilities paricipate in the Group's Creative Learning activifies. Oflen
inspired by the productions at venues, these can include workshops with visiting companies, backstage tours
and pre-show talks, and ako Youth Theotres, summer schools and classes for adults. in addition to this, many

regional venues are used for several weeks a year by local amateur production companies.

On Broadway, the Lyric Theatre hosts an autism friendly performaonce of Harry Polter and the Cunsed Child,
enlightening more than $0C children and adulis who are diagnesed with an autism spectium disorder or other
sensitivity issues and therr families and friends. Parnering with Theatre Developmant Fund (TDF), slight
adjustiments to the production have been made so that the show s presented in a friendly, supportive
environment, The Hudson Thealre hosts the 52nd $t. Project ot @ performance of David Byme's American
Ulopia. Founded in 1981, the 52nd Street Projec] & o communily-bosed arls arganisation. wilh o mission to
bring together klds kom Hell's Kitchen in Manhattan with thealre professiondls 1o create ongingl theatra
offered free 1o the general public. Teenagers from the organisation's song writing group enjoyed the show
and were delghtedly surprised by a “Meet & Greet” with David and the enfire band after the performance.
The evening ao served as a fundraiser for the Project where money raised would support the Beloved Non-
Profit Crganization.

Senstivily: Internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The Strategic Report has been prepored solely fo provide informalion to shareholders fo gssess how the
directors have performed their duty to promaote the success of he Group. The report contains certain forward-
locking staterments, which are made by the directors in good faith based on the information avgilable to them
at fhe time that the report was signed, but are subject to the irherent uncentainties underlying any forward-

locking information and as such should be treated with caution.

APFROVAL

This report was opproved and cuthorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21 July 2021 and signed on s

behotl !

John Oldcom
Director

I
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIGD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

§172 Statement

STATEMENT BY THE DIRECTORS IN PERFORMANCE OF THEIR STATUTORY DUTIES IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION
172{1) COMPANIES ACT 2004

The Board of Direcios of Intermational Entertainment Holdings Limited {"IEH") consider, both individually and
togethar. that thay have acted In the way they consider, in good faith, would be maost liksly 1o promote the
success of the Company for the benelit of its stakeholders as a whole (having regard to the siakeholders and
maters set ol M section 17241} {a-f of the Act} in the decisions taken during the period ended 27 March
2021,

5172(1) A “The likely consequence of any decision In the long term”
Tne Directors have taken the decision they believe bes! support [EH's strategic ambitions. More information
can be found under ‘Future Devaiopments” on page 5.

$172(1) B "The Interest of the compony's employees”
The Directors recognise that IEH emplayees are fundomental and core to our business and the dslivery of our
stiategic ambitions. Mare Information con be tound under 'Owr People' onpage 14,

3172{1) C “The need to foster the company's business relglionships with syppliers, customers and othess™

IEH stakeholders are customers, producers, suppliers, emplayees. sharehalders and lenders and the Board
recagnises the need to regulady review the dendily of ifs stakeholders as it makes decisions. The Board
promates accountablity and fransparency wilh all stakehalders.

The Company's fundomental belief in promoting the public good is demonskated and supported by our
Serior Leadership's active engagement gcross industry bodies and our stakeholder community,

The Grovp hos recently introduced new customer angagement surveys which will determing the Net Promeoter
Score {NPS] of the Group - this process is run by an extemal company to ensure independence. NFS
performance is being reported to the Board on a rmenthly basis, Although this is a new process, the findings
ore being used to improve customer engagement wilh knowledge being shared across all of our business.

An annugl employee 'Compony Day' delivered in london provides o brefing on the Compony's
perfarmance ond dllows individuols to raise guestions and concems. The Group monitors its employeea’s
commiiment to its guiding fromewark by Qsking members of senior management to submit an onnual
declaralion confiming whether they have complied with the Group's Code of Conduct. | any employee
wishes to highlight any potenticl breaches to the Code of Concuct, they can contact the independent
whistieblowing services provider ond a formal invastigation Fallows, with anonymous reporting to the Audit
Committee. Annuct employae engagement surveys are perfarmed 10 highlight oreas requiring improvement
in communication of the Gioup's purpose. The Board considers the results of all employee engagement
surveys G good barometer of the warkforce's confidence in the Group's strategic direction, optimism for the
fulure and career appartunities,

17
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

The Group produces Gender Pay Reporting and Payment Practices and Performanice Reporting, both of
which are published externally. The odditional analysis required to conduct this reporting hias highlighled some
areas in which the Group needs to improve. The Group wolcomes these changes as it seeks to constantly
improve in Its engagement with all stakeholders.

$172(1) D “The Impact ol the company's operations on the community and the environment™
The Directors recognise the impodance of its environmental responsibilities. More details can be found under
‘Environmenial matters’ on page 13,

5172{1) E "The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct”
IEH has zero tolerance for maodern slavery, bribery and olher forms of comuption. We implement and enforce
effective systemns to counter modem slavery, bribery and cormuption ond have infernal policies in place o
educale our employees about how to recognise and deal with these issues 50 as 1o ensure compliancs with
lcrws.

We remain committed o combatting modern slavery, brbery and comruption by:
- Auditing our supply chains;
- Training our staff to recognise these issues;

- Monitoring potential risk across our business.

We haove a dedicated whistleblowing service for our employees to report misconduct or unethical practices
and have a policy which clearly sets out how members of staff con raise any concerms which they may have.
Details of our code of coanduct and modern siavery can be found an the ATG website:
https.//www.alg.co.uk/corporate-informaiion

httpss./fwww. atg.couk/otg-modern-sdaveny-and-human-irafficking-stalement

$172(1) F "The need Yo act faidy as betwean members of the company”
At every Board meeting the Direclars review, wilh the management feam., the progress against sirategic
priorities and the changing shape of the business porfolio.

This collaborative approach by the Board, together with the Boord's approvol of the company sirategy. helps
it to promaote the long-team success of the Group. Board decisions are taken against the backdrop of what it
considers to be in the best interest of the long-term financial success of the company and its stakeholgers,
including shareholders, amployess, the community and environment, our suppliers ond customers.

8



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal declsions - engaging with stakeholders

As part of the decision making process forthe Board, it continues 1o have regard for the impact of its decisions
on the Group's stakeholders as required under section 172 of the Companies Act 20D6. The Board takes its
responsibility towards stakeholders seriously and strives to build and maintain productive retationshios with
each of them.

We outline here how we engage with our stakehaolders to drive outcomes.
1. Employees

The Group's long-term success is predicated on the commitment and conhibution of its workforce.
Engagemeant with our employees is essential to meet our strategic goals,

Owring this year, the Boasd has had to take the difficult decision to furlough the majority of the Group's staft
throughout the COVID-19 Pandemic. The use of Govemment Job Retention Schemas in the UK and Germany
has dllowed the Group to avoid, reduce or mitigate redundancies which might otherwise have beenrequired.

Resources have been made available to employees to support thelr mental health and wellbeing duing this
time. The Group has also implemented regulcr pulse surveys, CEG breaktasts and newsletters to ensure that

employees remain engaged throughout this time.
2. Customers

Customers are central 1o the success of the Group and engagement with our customers allows the Grouvp to

understand their requirernents and drive initiatives that seek to consistently improve the customer experience.

Owring the period in which the venues have bean closed, the Group has sought to use this time to plon for ra-
opeaning of owr venuas. In arder to ensure thot customers leel confident in retuming to our venues, the Group
has implementaed reguiar customer surveys ta better understand what COVID-19 secure meaasures customers
are expedcting to see. The feedback from our customers has been invaluable in delermining our COVID-1%

response.

Like many businesses, once COVID-17 resulted in the lockdown of our venues, the Group had a large volume
of customer requests to manage. To aid our employees and provide beter customet service, the Group
implemented a new customer service technology solution ond a second customer service coll centre to
manage the influx of customer queries in an efficient and fimely manner.

3. Suppliers

The Group has o number of long-term supplier pannerships which are an Importont part of our business
including in relation to venueg operations and [T infrastructure,

The Group engages with its supply chain through a variety of methods including via dedicated refotionship
managers, a central procurement function and meet the buyer events. The Group recognises the value of its
supply chain partners and the collaborative appreoach the Group has taken with its suppliers aliowed the
Group o respond proactively and promptly to the impact of COVID-1%.

I
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {conlinued )
FOR THE §2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Duing 2020, as part of the initiatives 1o preserve liquidity, 1he Graup worked with suppliers to adjust its supply
needs.

4. Conlent Partners

Qur content pariners are key to delivering o successful customer experience. Throughout the COVID-19
Pandemic it has been imperclive thal we engage with our content partners to ensure thot there is o plan for
how we deal with the re-scheduling and canceallation of shows in our venues. We have worked in conjunchion
with our partners fo ensure that this has been undertaken in a manner which preserves the custormer
relationship. Tha close working relalionship with our pariners has enabled us to plan for the re-opening aof our
venues with a strong confent pipefine due to the continued support from our content partners.

5. Communities and the Environment

The Group understands that it has an impact an communities and we engage with them in a number of
different ways including: local autreach programmes, craative learning and community partnerships amongst
others. As well as having a ceniral crealive outreach function, soch of our venues also has its own inifiatives
for community engiagement. Due to our geographic spread ccross the regions of the UK, North Amenca and
Germany. the Group is ablg to respond to the specific needs and opportunities in each area.

We shive to reduce the environmental impact of cur operations, and those of our supply chain partners,
through the responsible scurcing of resources. Key inftictives Include driving sustainable energy procurement,

instaliing more energy efficient tystems in our venues wherever passible, and diverting all waste from Tandfill,
4. Shareholders

The Group is in reguiar diclogue with its sharehoidars. The Group's shareholders are represented on the Board
and mee! regularly throughout the year o discuss the key decisions ¢ be made by the Group.

The close working relationship with the Group's sharehoiders has enabled the business to focus onkey strategic
objectives which have been set by the Board and focus on loeng-term opporiunities that mest the
requirements of the shareholders.

7. Financial Institulions

The Group regularly meets with its bonks, There is an annual presentation of the Group's performance, reguiar
interim reporting ond presentation of the Group's budget. This has enabled the Group to forge strong reiations
with its bankers and given them g beiter understanding of the Group's business and its perffomance.

A good relationship with the Group's bankers has encbled the Group to negotiate o temporary adjustment
te cerain financial covenants during the period when the Group's venues have nad to be closed due to the
COVID-19 restrictions.

20



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT {confinved )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Principal decisions made

wWe outline here some of the principat decisions made by the Group and how the directors have considered
various stakeholders.

1. COVID-1? Measures

The final month (March] of FY20 was G peariod of considerable uncertainty for all businagsses, including ours,
which warranted G response to the vnpracedented impact of the COVID-19 parndemic. We recognised
quickly that There were llkely to be significant implications of this pandemic on ourselves, as well as all other

location based entertainment businesses, Our marketing services business was olso impacied as many of its
clients are theatricat or location entertainment businesses, ke museums ong galleries. By 17 March 2020, we
had closed of of ow venues worldwide, in order to protect show casts and crew members. our employees

and visitors, Since then, we have diigently followed all government guidelines in each relevant geography.
In grder te preserve iguidity and mitigate the impaoct ofthe fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Directors
of the Group have taken the following rmegsuras!

- created a Business Continuity Committee, which has besn focused on crisis manogement and key
decision making:

- ongoing engagement with all our stakeholders, including our shareholders and lenders:

- implementation of bi-weekly cash flow forecasts to manage liquidity ot o granular leve! throughout the
Group;

- robust reopening scenario medslling to drive decision making;
-  proactive management of rescheduling shows to future dates to minimize the level of show canceliations;

- asignificant elament of the Group's cost base relates to wages and solgries. Where possible, and subject
to local reguiations, staffing levels and hours worked have been reduced. Employees, including senior
marnagement and directors, have also undertaken salary sacrifices, Govemment support both in the UK
in 1he form of the Job Retention Scheme and in Germany in the form of 1he Kuzarbeit progrem has been
utlised to offset staffing cosls that cantinue 10 be Incured:

- capital expenditure has been rephasad and prieritized on essential maintenance; and

- aclions have been taken to defer or permanently reduce paymenk of fixed costs and unpaid variable
costs from the pre-pandemic period, including agreements with Government fiscal authorties on certain
tax poyments.

2]
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

SYRATEGIC REPORT (continued )
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Whilst 1he Board has made decisions 1o deal with the immediote impoct of the COVID-1% pandemic it has
also made these decisions with regards to the Group's longer term strategic objectives, For example, despite
limifs on cash reserves and initictives to preserve ligquidity, the Group has continued to invest in COVID-19
secure measures that will need lo be implemented for re-cpening our venues. Investment in key strategic
initictivas such as IT and ¢yber security have continued.

2. Investrment in digital capabiities to dhive pre-thow and invernue F&B

As g customer facing bwsiness it is important to conlinuo o evolve to improve customer expernencs, The
memiers of the Boord ware satisfied that the development and rall-out of o new digital foad ond beverage
sales chamnel was an important step for the Compony to take to improve the user experence for our
customers. The abilily to order food ond beverage on-line prior 1o and during your visit would reduce qusues
in the venue and mitigate crowding, reducing the risk of COVID-17 infection.

3. Ihvestment in building CAPEX

Despite our initiatives to preserve liquidity durng the period when our venues have been closed, the Board
has aflse considered it prudent to invest in our building: where we can. Undertaking key repaiis and
enhancements, whilst cur venues have been closed has enabled ws to ensure that we do not have to
postpore or interrupt shows to carry out the works. A number of these projects ensure that we provide a better

axperiance for our customers and content pariners 5o that they remain safeguarded for thea future,
4, investing in diversity and Inclusion

Despite owr veriues being closed, the 8oard has considered it key 10 continuea to focus on diversity and
inclusion both on and off the stage. Having token into account previous work undertaken by the Diversity
Working Group, the Board has considered it important 1o expond upon the inlialives already undertaken.
Improving the diversity of voices within the Group will enhance the longer term success of the Group as O

whole,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Anthony Ball, Non-Executive Direclor

Anthony Ball served as Chairman of infernational Entertainment Holdings Limited from December 2014 to April
2021 and remains on the board as a non-executive director, He has been g senior advisor of Providence Equity
Partrers since 2013, Ha has had a long and successful careerin the media and entertainment industios in the
UK and internationally, as chairman of Kabel Deautschland frorm 2005 to 2013 and as CEO of BSkyB, the largest
pay-TV brodadcaster in Europe, Prior Ko this, he was the CEQ of the News Compordlionfliberty Media joint
venture, Fox/liberly Networks, which included the FX Networks. Fox Sports Net and over 20 regional sports
channels throughou! the US. He s a nonexecutive director of BT Group ond chairman ot Pertland
Communications. Anthony received a MBA from Kingsten University and has been awarded honorary
doctorates from both Middlesex University and Kingston University.,

Mark Cornell, Chief Executive Officer

mMark Cornell was appointed Group CEO of the Ambassador Thealre Group Tt May 2014, Pricr 10 this he was
Managing Director of Sotheby's Europe and preceding that, spert 10 years ot LWWMH, ingluding President and
Chief Execulive Officer of Moel Hennessy USA and Chief Executive Officer of Krug Champagne, Mark has
vast experence in managing large organisations, s wedl as successfully leading consumer-ofientatad brancis
in the UK, Europe and the USA.

Stephen Evans, Non-Executive Director, Silver Loke Partness

Stephen Evans joined Siver Lake in 2008 and 5 o Managing Directar. Mr. Ev0ns serves on the board of
Ambassador Thealre Group [ATG], Endeavor and TEG. He i a member of the audit commitleas of City
Football Group and URC. He glse previously served on the boards of Anceastry.com and Serena Software, Inc.
Priar 1o joining Silver Lake. Mr. Evans was a Principal at Cognetas, a pan-Euraopean private equity firm, where
he focused on fransactions across business and information services. Previousty, Mr, Evans spent five years at
Bain & Company, based both in Europe and the U.S., including two years in 8ain's private equity group. He is
o member of the executive board of the EB Resegrch Foundation, which is dedicated to finding a cure for
Epidermclysis Bulicsa, a rare childran’s diseaase. Mr. Evons holds an MA. and an M.Phil from Cambricdge
University, and an M.B.A_ from Harvard Business School,

David Leigh, Non-Execulive Director

Cavid Leigh joined he nternational Entertainment Holdings Limited board o5 g non-exécutive director in
Qctober 2015, He ¥ CEO ot Alexonder Mann Solutions, @ role he has held since Novernber 2019, Prior to
joining Atexander Mann, David was CED of Study Group, and prior to that was CEO of SHL. Pricr to SHL, he was
on the Execulive Committee of Groupe Steria, with responsibility for Business Process Cutsourcing. David's
earlier background was in private equity {iFormation Group, a joint venture between Goldman Sachs, General
Atlantic Partners and the Boston Consulting Group), consulting {McKinsey & Co| and law {Herbert Smith},
David has an MA in Social and Political Sciences from Cambridgs University aond o post-graduate iegal
qudlification from the Coflage of Law, London,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES {continved)

Alexander Mishenin, Non-Execufive Directar, Providence Equily Pafdners

Alexander Misherin is o vice prasident based at Providenice Equity Partners. Prior ta joining Providence in 2014,
Mr. Mishenin worked as an analyst in the investrment banking group at L.P. Morgan in London. M. Mishenin
received o Masters in Finance and Law from Duisenberg School of Finance and o Bochelor of Business
Informatics from the Higher School of Economics, Moscow.

Jonathan M. Nelson, Executive Chalman, Providence Equity Partners

#r. Nelson was oppointed Charman of Intemational Enteriainment Holdings Limited in April 2021, Mr, Nelson
is execulive chairman and founder of Frovidence Equity Partners, the world's leading private equity fam
focused on media, communi¢ations, education and Information investments. The fimn manages funds with
$45 bilion in commitments and has invested in mare than 170 companies globally since its inception.  Mr,
Nelson serves on the board of directors of Ambassadar Theatre Group ond The Chemin Group. He has also
sarved as a dirsctor of numerous other Providence portfolio companies. including Bresnan Communications,
Ercom plc, Hulu, Longuage Line, MotroNet {now AT&T Canada). MLS Medida, Univision, VoiceStraam Wirgless
[row T-Mobite US), Wamer Music Group, Westem Wireless Corporation [now ATAT Com.} and Yarkees
Entertainment and Sports Nebtwork (YES).

Mr. Netson has been a private equily investor for 38 years. He founded Providence In 1939, Previously, he
was a managing director of Naragansett Capilal, inc. which be joined in 1983, At Naragansett Capital, Mr.
Nebkon specialirzed in private equily invesiments in media.  Mr, Nelion received a Moster of Business
Administration from the Harvard Business School in 1983 and a Bachslar of Arts from Brown University in 1977,
He is a trustee of Brown Univernsity, The Rockefeber Universily and Institute for Advanced Study. He s a member
of the Board of Dean's Advisors ot Harvard Busingss School

John Qldcom, Chief Financlal Ciilcer

John Qldcom was appainted as CFQ of International Entertainment Haldings Limited on 1 July 2021, Prior 1o
this John spent three years as the Group CFO of Argent Foods, a £750m tumover conglomerate of lood-related
business. At Argent he cversaw ralationships with landers and othar key stakeholders, played a key role in the
group navigating successfully through the pandemic, and led four debt rakses / refinancings, and significont
Comporate and M&A aclivity. Prior 1o joining Argent in 2018, John spent 25 years working in prafessional
praclice wilh Arthur Andersen. Deloitte and, Iatterly, KPMG. the |ast 14 years as a partner, He co-led he
creation and ropid growth of a dedicoted, mulfi-disciplinary, private equity practice serving global PE cllents
and their portfolis companies across Europe, iypically in a fast-paced MAA environment.
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George Osborne, Non-Executive Director

George Osborne jcined the boord of IEH as a non-exgcutive diractor in April 2021. He i a pariner at Robey
wWarshaw LLP. Prior to his cumrent roles, Gaorge was an MP for sixteen yaars, the Chancellor of the Exchegquer
[2010-2016) and First Secretary of State [2015-2018], and edited the London Evening Stondard from 2017-2020.
George s chalr of the not-tor-profit Nothern Powerhouse Partnershin and o Lecturer at Stanford University,
Cdlifomia. In 201 & he was made a Companion of Honaur by Her Majasty the Queen.

Robert Svdo, Non-Execudive Director. Providence Equity Pariners

Robert Sudo is a managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is also a director of Bité, Closer Still Media,
H3E24, Masmovil and LaCentrale. Prior to joining Providence Equity Partness in 2004, Robert worked o5 an
analys? for Gokdman Sacks in mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance, He received G Diploma in
Business Administration from HHL Leipzig Graduate School of Management,

Andrew Yisdale, Non-Execulive Direcior, Frovidence Equity Pardners

Andrew Tisdale 15 a Senior Managing Difector and Co-Head of Europe at Providence Equity Pariners. He (s
also a Director of Chime Communication, Claser 3HI Media, HSE24, TES Global and Node4. Prior tao joining
Pravidence Equity Partners in 2008, Andrew was global co-head of the media and communications group
and o memper of Morgon Stanley's manaogement committee for investrment bonking., Andrew received a
Master of Business Adminishation from the University of North Carcling ot Chapel Hill and a Bachalor of Arts
from Vanderhit University, He currently serves an Ihe Space novalion Council at the Cafformia Irstitute of
Technology and, the Board of Advisors for the Yale School of Drama, and Vanderbilt University’s College of
Ams and Sciences,

Micha#l Vervisch, Non-Exaculive Diractor, Providence Equity Partners

Michaél Vervisch is o managing director at Providence Equity Partners. He is dlso o director of Noded. Mr
varvdsch originally joined Providence in 2014, In the past he worked as a principal ot Clayton Dutiilier & Rice,
as an asseciale director ot K Investmant Partners and ¢s an associate al MoKinsey & Company. Mr. VYervisch
recaived a Master of Business Administration rom Harvard Business School and holds ¢ Master of Science in
Eleckical Engineering and a Master of Science in Applied EConomics from the Xatholieke Universiteit Leuven
in Belgivm,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

The direciors present their report and the audited financict stalements for the period ended 27 March 2021,
The directors consider the annual report and financial statements to comply substantially with all aspects of
the "Guidelines tor Disclosure and Transparency in Private Equity™.

DIRECTORS

The directors who served during the period and to the date of signing the financial stolements [except os
noted) were;

Anthony Ball

Mark Comell

Stephen Evans Appointed & October 2020
Sinisa Krnic Resigned & October 2020
David Leigh

Alexandler Mishenin appointed 6 October 2020

Jonathan MNelsan Appointed 27 Aprl 202
John Oldcomn Appointed 1 July 202)
George Qsborne Appointed 27 April 2021
Robert Sudo

ShanMae Teo Rasigned 1 July 2021
Andrew liscdale

nMichael Vervisch Appointed & Oclober 2020

The biographies of the curent directors are presented on page 23 to 25.

The Group is majority owned by Providence Equity Pariners through its investment funds, Providence Equily
Partrers VI-A LP and Providence VIl Global Holdings LP. Providence Equily Partners is a global alternative
investment firm established in 1989 focused on educalon, media, communications, and information
invastments. The firm’s private eguity plafform specialises in sector-focused buyoult fransactions and grawth
capiial Investments. Frovidence Equity Partners made its Investment in the Group through IE Luxco S.41rk

26



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (conilnved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company has made qualifying third-party indernnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were

made during the pericd and remain in force at the date of this report.

RESULYS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the periad ofter toxation amounted to £13%.C milion [2020; £25.9 million}.

Mo dividends have been pald during the curent peariod §2020; £Nil]. No dividends are proposed intespect to
the currant period.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2920

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the impact of COVID-12 on the Group's frading
continues lo be assessed and is subject to rapidly changing extemal factors, including evolving government
responses to control the spread of the vinys and ongoing changes in customer sentiment 1owards attending
live entertainment events.

Due to the measures taken by govemments worldwide to control the COVID-19 outbreck, the live
entertainment industry came to o standstil from the second half of March 2020, with oll sur venues being

closed for operations.

Prior to mid-Mmarch 2020, the Group had fraded well with ¢ programming schedule of highly successful shows
supperding strong operational performance across all of Its teritories. We were in @ strong financial position
with ¢l covenants under the terms of our loans being met, Unfartunately, the closure of cur venues has resulted
in a sharp drop in fumover, Our marketing servicas businesses are also experiencing a drop in tumover as mony
of our customers are in the live enterainmant and cultural & heritage sectors {museums, galleries, zoos); all of
which have had restrictions on their operalions during COVID-19. Whilst there has been a corrosponding
reduction in variable costs as a resull of the closure of our venues, the Group continues to have to fund its
fixed cost base,

tn arder 10 preserve iguidity and mitigate the impact of the fixed cost base during the pandemic, the Directors
of tha Group have taken a nurmber of measures as set out on page 21 of this report.

the Group has net curent ligbilities of £63.4 milion [2020: £168.7 million] and net assets of £51.1 milon [2020:
£492.0 miion} ot the period-end data, Net current liabilities include advanced ticket saies of £113.8 milllon
(2020: £142.4 million). These represent licket sales for shows that have yet to malure, with a porfion of this
omount due to flow 1o the Group. Excluding advance ticket sales and norefundable gronts, the Group has
liabibties due within one year of £144.2 milion {2020: £187.Q0 milion) which are exceeded by curent cssels of
£227.7 milon, {2020: £2046.5 million}.

The Group holds cash reserves, excluding required escrow accounts, in lts bank accounts of £182.% milion as
at the reporting date. In addition, the Group has received an equity commitment from ils shareholders, which

is presently undrawn.

The Group operates and robusl, bi-weekly cash and cash flow farscasting process covering the period to 31
December 2022,

Sensitivities are run to reflect different scenarios for when theatres might or will be able tore-openin the months
following the dote of the approval of these financial statements, This is done to identify risks to liquidity and
covenant compiiance anct enable management o formulate appropriate and timely mitigation strategies.
These sensitivities include severe, but plowsible, downside scenarios.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (coentinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

Bosed on these forecasts and other factors which may impact the Group's future liquidiy pasition, the
Directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial statements on a golng concem biasis,

The reascns for this are as foliaws:

- The Group holds £433.0 million of committed facilities which are suidject to net leverage and liquidity
covenants. There is a reduced risk of default on the net leverage covenant, due to a faclity amendment
which allows for an adjustment to the net leverage covenant whilst theatres are closed by governments
thue to COVID-17 and during an agread romp up perind post re-opening. The Group is aiso subject to o
minimum lguidity covenant which is forecast 1o be met far the next 12 months; and

- Adeguate liquidity it in place for the next 12 months based on the foresaeable scenarios for theatres, in
terms of re-opening dates. polentiol restictions on how our venues con operate (ie, social distancing
requiremeants], and the tevel of demand from audiences. At present, govemment policy on reapening of
theatrical venues and social distancing requirements vares across the countries and regions that the

Group operates in.

The Board's confidence in the Group's forecasts, its ability to monage its liquidity reguirements. confidence in
the continued support of aur shareholders, and the long term potential of the busingss lorms the basis of our

preparation of the financial statements on a going concern basis.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 28 MARCH 2020

MATTERS COVERED N THE STRATEGIC REPORT

Certoin motters {post halance sheet events, future developments, principal risks and uncerlainlies angd
smpioyvee matters) are discussed within the Strategic Report and incorporaied into the Directors' Repord by

relarence.
AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a drector at the date of approvat of this annual report confinms that:

- so for as the direcior s aware, there is no relevont qudit nformation of which the Company's auditoris
vhaware, and

- the director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken as a dirgclor in order o make
himself/herself aware of any relevant qudit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is
aware of that information.

This confirmation is givern and should be interpreted in accordaonce with the provisions of s418 of the
Companles Act 2006,

Delgitte LLP have expressed their willingness to continue in office as auditor and a rasolution to reappeint them
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting,

This raport was approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Direcions on 21 July 2021 and signed on its
behaif;

v

John Qldcorn

Director

Registered ofiice
28 §1. George Street, London
W15 2FA, United Kingdom
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the aAnnual Report and the finangial statements in accordance

with appiicable law and regulations,

Company law requires the directaors 1o prepare financlal staternents for each financial period. Under that fow
the directors have elected to prepdre the financial statements in accordance with Intemational Financial
Reporting Standards [IFRSs} o5 adopted by the Eoropean Union. Under company law the directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisied that they glve o trus and fair view of the stote of
alfais of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these financiol

statemenils, Intemational Accounting Stondard 1 requires that directors:

- propery select ond ocpply accounting policies;

- present information. including accounting paiicies, in a manner that pravides relevant, refiable,
comporatle ond understandable information;

- provide addifionat disclosures when complionce with fhe specific requirements in IFRSs are insuffizient
to enabile users fo understand the impact of particular fransactions, other events and conditions on
the entifty's financial posifion and Bnancial pertormaonce; ond

- moke an assessment of the Company's abllity 1o continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sulficient to show anad explain
the Company's fronsactions and disciose with raasenable accurccy at any fime the financial position of the
Company and enable them te enswre that the financial stataments comply with the Companies Act 2004.
They are also responsible for saleguarding the assets of the Company and hences for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of froud ond other irregulorities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenonce and integrity of the comorate and financial infformation
included on the Company's wabsite. Legisiation in the Uniled Kingdom govering the preparation and
dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislotion in other jurisdictions,

We confirm that 1o the best of our knewledge:

« the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the relevani finoncial reparting framework,
give a true and fair view of tha assets. fiabilities, finoncial position and profit of 1oss of the Company
ondg the undentakings incivded in the consolidation taken as g whaole;
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT (continued}

- e Strategic Report Includeas o Fair revigw of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a desenption of the principal risks and uncerainties that they foce; and

- the annual report and financial statemeants, taken as o whole, are fafr, balanced and understandable
and provide the Infarmaiton necessary for shareholders to ossess the Group's perfarmance, business
maodel and strategy.

This respnnsibility statement was gpproved by the Board of Directors on 21 July 202! and is signed on its behalf

g |

John Qldcorn
Diractor
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TQ THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the audh of the nancial stalements

Opinion
In our opinion the fingncicl siatements of iIntemational Entertainment Heldings Limited {the *parent company’}

and its subsidicries (the "group'):

« give atrue and {agir view of the state of tha group's and of the parent company’s affairs as at 27 March
202} and of the group’s loss for the vear then ended;

= have been property prepared in accordance with intemational accounting sfandards in confommnity with
the requrements of the Companies Act 2006; and

+ haove been prepared in accordonce with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004,

We have oudited the financial statements which compise:

+ the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

« the comsolidated and company statements of inancics pasition;
» the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity;
+ the consolidated statement of cashilows; and

» thereloted notes 1 to 33.

The fnongial reparting framework that has been oppled in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformily with the requiremants of the Companias Act 2006,

Basis for opinlen
We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing [UK) {ISAs (UK} and
applicable law, Our responsibiities under those standards are further described in the auditor's respansibilities

for the audit of the financial statements section of cur repor,

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordancs with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial stafement: in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the
'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfiled ouwr other ethical responsbilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 5 sufficient and gppropriate 1o provicle

a basis for our opinion,

Conclusions relating to going concem

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting In the preparatfion of the inancial siatements is appropnate,

Our evoluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's ond parent company's abifity to continue to adopt

the going concem basis of accounting included:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

¢ an assessment of the entiias financing facilities including nature of faciities, repayment termms and
covenants;

+  areview of managsment's forecasts, including challenging management's key assumptions such s the
reopening dales of theatres. the occupancy levels, the base level of operating costs, the cash flow to
achieve re-opening. and the refund rate on advanced sales;

«  ah gssessment over the amount of headroom in the forecasts {cash and covenantsj on a base case and
under managememnt's sensitivity analysis of an extended dark period or o reduction in cccuponcy rates;
and

«  review over the model used to prepare the forecasts, testing of clerical occuracy of those forecasts and
our assassment of the histarical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management,

Based on the work we have perfarmed, we have net identified ony material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions thal, individually or collectively, may cast significant dout on the group's and parent
company's abilly to conlinue as o going concem for a perded of at least twelve months from when the

financial stalements are quthorised for Issuas.,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilitias of the direction with respect to going concem are descrbed in the
retavant sections of this report.

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual repart, other than the financial
statements and our quditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other informaltion contained
within the annual report. Our opinion on the finoncial statements does not cover the other information and,
excepl to the extent otherwise explicitly staled in our report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon,

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing 50, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained In the course of the audi, or
otherwise appears to bbe materially misstated. if we identify such material inc onsistencies or apparent mataricl
misstaterments, we are required to determine whether this gives rise 1o a material misstatement in the finonciol
statements themselves, if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact,

We have nothing to report in this regarg.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Responsibiliies of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' resporsibiflies statament. the direclons ara responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
intermal control as the directors determine is necessary o enable the praparation of lnancial staterments that
are free from material misstciement, whether due to fraud or emor.

In preparing the financial stoternents, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company's ability to continue as o going concem, disclosing. as applicabte, matters reloted to going concem
and wing the going concem basis of accounting unlass the directors sither intend to liguidate the group or
the parent company of te cease operations, or have no realishic altamalive but to do so.

Avditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financlal statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance obout whether the finaricial statements gs a whole are
frea frorn material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, ond to ssue an audior's report thot includes
ow opinion. Reasonable assurance & a high level of assurance, but s not o guorontee thot an qudit
conducled in accordance with 1SAs (UK} wil always detect o matedial misstaterment when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material . individudlly or in the aggregata.
they could reasonably be expected o Influence the economic decisions of ysers taken on 1he hasis of these

fincncial statements.

A further description of ocur responsibilities for the audit of the finonciol statements is located on the FRC's
website at www fre g uk fauditorsresponsingtities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the oud#t was consldered capable of detecling Iregularities, Including fraud

Iregularities, including froud, are instances of non-compliance with lows and reguiations. We design
pracedurss in iine with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
iregularities, including fraud. The extent io which owr procedures are capable of detecting iregularities,
inctuding fravd is detailed below.

We considerad the nature of the group's industry andl its control envirenment, and reviewed the group's
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to Faud and compliance with laws and regulations.
We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of iregularities.

we cbiained an understanding of the legal and regulatery framework that the group cperates in, and

identified the key laws and regulations that:

= had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments.
These included UK Companies Act, iFRS, CJRS and tax legisiation; and

+ donothave adirect effect on the financiol statements but complianca with which may be fundamentct
io the group's ability to gperate or to avoid o malerial penalty:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

We discussed among the audi! engagement team, including significant compaonent gudit feams and refevant
intemal specialists such as fax, ond valuations specialists regarding the opporiunities and incentives thal may
exist within 1he organisation for fraud and how and whete froud might occur in the financial statements,

As aresult of performing the cbove, we identified the greatest potential for raud o non-compliance with laws
and regulalions in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to addrass them are described
helow:

+ Judgement and sstimotion., which give dse to the risk of aud ore regulred in the preparation of
discounted cash flow ['DCF'] modek used to detemmnine whether there is an impalrment of goodwil and
other assets. The same DCF are appfied to support the camying value of 1he Group's venues. The fraud
risk arises with the estimates made over the future trading assumptions, specitically the assumed date of
venues re-opening and the discount rate gpplied, We have challenged management’s assumplions and
considered both supparting or contradictory evidence whilst also engaging specialist input into the audit
of the discount rate in each region, We have also corsidered the appropriatenass of the sensitivities
performed by management and the disclosures thereoi,

» The Group has utilised a number of Covid-19 related govemment support schemes. The nolure, eligibility
and complexity of the schemes varies betweaen territories, We identitied a fraud risk in relation to the
Group's applications under these schemes given the complexity and reduced lime period in which the
schemes were established, specificaly pinpointed fo the Job Retention Schemes in the LK and Germany.
The risk is that amounts claimed by the Group could be intentionaly, or unintentonally, misstated which
could lead to repayments, fines and reputational damage. We have considered the design and
implementation of the conlrols management instigated to ensure the accuracy of applications and
recording of assislonce received. With the involvement of our speciafist leam we have inspected source
documentation and, For a sample of claims recalculated cmounts claimed and traced payments to the
HMRC claims portal and the bank receip! of funds ensuring consistency with amounts recorded in the
financicl statemenis. We have alse reviewed the disclosures made in respect of government assistance.

In common with all audits under 13As {UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to
the risk of management overide. In addressing the risk of froud through management override of controls, we
tested the appropriatenass of joumal enfries and other adjustments: assessed whiather the judgements made
In making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias: and evaluated the business rationcie of

any significanl transaclions that are unusual or outside he nomMmal courss of business,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

in addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the itks identified included the fallowing:
s reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing fo supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant Jaws and reguiations described as having o direct effect on the finoncial

statements;

«  pefforming analytical proceduras 1o identify any vnusud) or unexpedcted relationshiss that may indicate
risks of moterial misstatement due to fraud:
+  enhguiing of management conceming actual aond potential fitigaftion and claims, and instances of non-

compliunce with iows and regulations; and

¢ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC.

Report on offher legat and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters presciibed by the Companies Act 20046

In our opinion. based on the wotk undertaken in the course of the audit:

s the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the nancidl year tor which 1he
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

¢ the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with oppiicable legal

raquiraments.

n the ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parant company and their
environment cbioined in the course of The audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the

strategic report or the directors’ report,

Matters on which we are required fo repert by exception

Undlsr the Componies Act 2004 we are required to repaort in respact of the folowing rmatters if, in Gur opinion:

« adeqguate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company. of returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches nol visited by us: or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or

« certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by low are not made; or

« we have not received all the information ond explanations we require for our oudit,

We hove nothing 1o report in rgspect of thasa mattess,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED {continued)

Use of our report
Thiz report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordonce with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Acl 2004, Cur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's
members those matters we are required 1o state to them in an auditor's report and for ne other purpose. To
the fullest extent pearmitted by iow, wa do not accept or assume responsibilty to anyone ofher than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our oudit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
hove formed.

"‘iA !j LY
Helen Wildman ACA [Senior Statutary Auditor)
for and on behalf of Delgitte LLP
Statulory Auditor

tondon
United Kingdom

21 July 2021
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Note 52 week pariod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Revenue 3 41.641 474,747
Cost of soles 119.208} {189,248]
Gross profit 22,433 287,499
Administrative expenses {116.793) (284,575)
Share of results of associates and joinl venltures 11 12473 {702)
Operating [iess) fprafil 4 (94,609} 2,222
Finance income 7 1,544 1,344
Finonce costs 8 [54.072) {37.473)
Loss pefore tax (142.135) {33.707)
Taxation g 8,183 7.982
Loss for the penod (138.952) {25.925)
Attriutable o
COwmers of the Compony {138.952) {25.925]
Comprehensive Income
Lass for the period {138,952} {25,925)
Herns that may be reciossified subsequently to
prafit or foss;
Exchange differences on franslation of foreign (492) 35,195
aperations
ftemns that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or joss;
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit 274 241
ohligafions
Tolal comprehaensive 10ss For the period {132.170) (20.489)
Atiributable fo;
Owners of the Company [139.170} (20.489)
Total comprehensive loss for the period [139,170) {20.489)

All activity relafes to confinuing operations.

There are no maternadl differences between the losses for the pertods disclosed above and their historical cost

squivdlents, The accompanying notes form parf of ond are to be read in conjunction with these finoncici

statermnents.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated Company
27 March 23 March 27 March 28 March
2021 2020 2021 2020
E'000 £000 £000 £000

v estments 10,33 2,178 4,356 413,835 262,575
Interests in assaciates and joint ventures 11,33 3,528 1,519 - -
Goodwil 12 362,884 372730 - -
Intangible assets 12 18,609 16,328 - -
Propery, plant and equipment 13 389,479 430,905 - -
Deferred tax assets 22 17316 11.547 - -
Non-curent tfrade ond other receivables 16 22.431 23.318 - .
Non-current assets B14,425 840,723 413,835 262,575
Inventories 14 505 1,044 - -
Investments in shows 15 2,373 3,754 - -
Trade and other receivables 16 39,360 62,554 - -
Cash and cash eguivalents 17 185,432 132.065 144 -
Curnent assels 227.6%0 206,457 144 -
Total assels 1044 115 1,067.180 413,981 262,575
Trade ond cther payables 18 189,57t  260.814 11,046 10,900
Borrowings 19 &9 370 43 370 - -
Obligations under Hinance leases 20 16,393 19.474 - -
Prowvisions 21 15,801 25483 - -
Cunrent liablities 291,135 375,143 11.044 10,900
Net current lloblilities (63,445) [148.687) (10.900)  {10,900)
Borowings I? 514,037 456,670 - -
Obligations under linance leases 20 149,693 157.706 - -
Delerred tax fiakiitles 22 251938 28,699 - -
Non.-current llablittles £91,928 643,075 - -
Total liablliles $83,083 1,018,218 11,044 10,900
Not assets 41,052 48942 402,935 251,875
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

{continued)

AS AT 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Consolidated

Campuny

27 Mmarch 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 ssarch 2020

£'000 £000 £000 £000
Shore copital 23 414 262 414 242
Share premium account 402,522 251.414 402,521 251,413
Trantigtion reserve 26,991 27.483 - -
Accumulated deficit (348,875 {230,197} . -
Totat equity aftribytabla to 41,052 48,9462 402,935 231,675

owners of the Company

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act
20046 not to prasent its own Statement of Comprehensive Income and related notes. The result for the year

declt with in the financial staternants of the Compary was Enil {2020. £nil].

The financial statemeants of were approved by the Board of Diractors and quthorised for issue on 21 July 2021,

They were signed on its behalf by:

VI

John Oldcomn
Reglstered Numbier 08769974
Director
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

For the 52

week

period
ehded 27 For the 521 week
Moarch  period ended 28
2021 March 2020
£000 £'000
Net cash (used In}/generaled fram operating aclivities 24 {108,526} 62,235
Purchases of property, plant and equipment {10,389) {40.923)
Purchases of intangible assets [4,343) {13,144]

Net recoupment fromshows 1,401 1,855
Net cash used In investing activilles 113.351) 152.212)

New sharehoider loans raised 135,000 69,370
Proceeds from share issue 151,240 -
Repayments of bank borowings (85.500) -
Repayment of obligations under finonce leases 111,094) {18,028}
Intevest received 1.544 22
interest poid 120,994) {22,917}
Nel cash generated by linancing activities 170,216 28.447
Net increase In cash and cash equivalenfs 48,339 38,470
Cash and cash equivalents ot baginning of period 139,065 98,956
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 48,339 38,470
Foreign exchange {loss}/gain on cash D L -2 1.43%
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peviod 17 185,432 132,065

The accompanying notes form part of and are to be read in conjunclion with these financial statements.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

General Infarmalion

nternationad Enterfainment Holdings Limited (the "Group") is a private Compony limited by shares,
incorporated in the United Kingdom undsr the Cornparnies Act and is registered in England and Wales. The
address of the registered office is 28 51. George Strest, London, WIS 2FA, United Kingdaom.

The prncipal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the Group) and the nature of the Group's

operations are set outin in the strategic report on pages 1 to 22,

Thase financial stalements are presented in pounds steding because that is the curency of the primory

economic envircrment in which the group cperates.
Adoption of new and revised standards

Amendments tc [FRSs that are mandalorily effective for the cvrent period

In the curent year, the Group has applied amendments to iFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board {1ASB] that are mandaterdly effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1
Januagry 2020,

The adoption of these amendments in the year did not have amaterial impact on the financial statements.
MNew and revised iFRSs In Issue but not yet effective:

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the Group has hot applied the foitowing new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to 1AS | - Classificotion of liabilities os cument or Non-current
- Arnandments 1o AS 3 — Referance 10 the Conceaptud] Framework
Amendments 1o 1AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates
- Amendments o JAS 12 — Defered Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
- Amendments (o 1AS 14 - Properly, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before infended use
- Amendments to 1AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of fulfiling a contract
- Amendrments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations
IFRS 14~ COVID-19 Related Rent concessions
- IFRS 17 - Imsurance contracts
- Annualimprovemnents 1o IFRS stgndards 2008 — 2020 (IFRS 1, IFRS 9, IFRS 14, JAS 41}

The Directors are curently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards, amendments and

interpretations but do not expect them to have a material impact on the Group operation or results
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounting pollcies

Bosis of accounting

The finoncial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemaotional Financial Reporting
Standards [IFRSsy. The financlal statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by
the Eurcpean Unicn ond therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU |AS
Regulation.

The Company has taken advontage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companies Act
2004 not to present its own Siofement of Comprehensive Incomea and related notes. The profit for the vear
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £ril {2020: £nil).

The finonciol statements have bean preapared on the historical cost basis, except for finangial instruments
that are measured at fair values ot the end of sach reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below. Historical cost s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods

and services,

Fair valve s the price that would be received o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabdity in an orderly
wansaction between market participants ot the medasurement dote, regardless of whether that price Is
directly cbservable or estimated using another valuation technigue. In estimating the foir value of an asset
or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset ar liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into gccount when pricing the asset or licbility at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement ondfor disclosure purposss in these consolidoted financial statermsants s
determined an such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS
2, leqsing transactions that are within the scope of 1IAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities 1o
fair value but are not fair value, such as net reclisable value in 1AS 2 or vaiue inuse in IAS 36,

Qperating resulls

The operating resuits Include transactions up o and including the Saturday on or precading 31 mMarch of
each period.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated Rnancial statements incorporale the financial stalements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company [ils subsidiaries), Contral is achieved when the Company has the power over
the investee, & exposed, or has rights, to varable retums from its invoivernent with the investee and has the
ability to use its power to alfect its retums.

The resulls of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the pefiod are inciuded in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income rom the date the Company gains contral until the date when 1he
Company ceasas to conirol the subisidiory,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERKOO ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting poflicies (continued)

Basls of consoidation {conlinued}

All introgroup ossets and ligbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions

betweaen the membears of the Group are eliminaled on consalidation,

Non-controling interests in subsiciaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those
intarasts of non-conkolling shareholders that are present ownarship interests are initiclly measured at the
non-controling interests' proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree's identificile net assets.
Suksequent to acquisition, the camying armaunt of no n-dontroll‘mg interests is the amount of thosa intarasts
at inftial recognition plus the nhon-condroling interesis” share of subbsequent Changes in equity.

Business Combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiares are accounted for using the acguisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured ot fair value. Acquisition-related costs cre recognised in profit or loss as

incurrad.

Goodwil is measwred os the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
contraling inferast in the acouiree, and the fair valve of the ocquirer's previously held equity interest inthe
acquire [if any] over the net of tha aocquisifion-date armounts of the identficble assets acquired and the
labilities assumad.

Contingent consideration s meawured ot its cocquisition-data foir value and included os part of the
consideration transterred in a busivess combinalion, Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify os measurement period adjustments are adjusted refrospeclively, with comesponding
adjustments againgt goodwill. Measurement pedod adiustrents are adjustments that arise from additional
information obiacinad duwing a maximum peariod which cannot axceed onea year ffom the acquisition data
about facts and circumstances that existed daf the acquisiion date. Where changes occur 1o contingent
consideralion that is classified as on asset or liablity, thal do nat qualify as measurement period adjustments.,
the contfingent consideration is remeasuned at subsequent reporing dales with the coresponding gain or
loss belng recognised in profit or loss. To the extent that the terms of contingent consideration arangements
include service conditions, consicleration is reated as a cost of ernployment and is recognised over the

period to which the service conditions relate,
The Group reporis provislional amounts until the measwement perod s completed,
nvestments

investrmeants in subsidiaries are valued gt cost less provision for impairment.

47

Seasitivity: Internai tise



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles {continued)

Assoclates and joint arangements

An gssociate is an entily over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an Inlerest in Q Joint venture, Significont mfluence is the power to participate in the financict and operaling
policy dacisions of the nvestee but is not contrd! or joint contrel over those policies.

A joint arangement s an arrangament of which two or mone parties have joint control, Joint control is the
cantractually agreed sharing of confrol of an arangement, which exists only when decisions akout the
relevant activities {i.e. octivities that significantly affect the retums of the arrangement) require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing contiol. Joint arangements are classiied into two types - joint operations and

joint ventures.

A joint operalion i a joint arongement whereby the parties that have joint conirol of the arrangement [i.s,
joint aperators) have rights to the assets, and obligations far the liabilities, relating to the arangement. A joinl
vanlure s g joird arangement whereby the parties that have jcint control of the arangement {i.e. joint
ventures) hove rights o the net assets of the amangement, The type of joint amangement is assessed by
considering its rights and obligations, by considering the sfructure and legal form of the armangemen), the
confractual terms agreed 1o by the paries to the arongement and. when relevani, other lacts and
circurnstances.

The assets and liabilities jond related reverues and expanies) of joint operations are recognised in proportion
to the interest in the arangemeni.

The results and assets and Lakilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these financial
staternants using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, an investment in an gssociate
is inflially recognised in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position at cost and adpsted thereafter to
racognise the Group's share of the profit or loss ond other comprehensive income of tha associate. when
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interes! in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group®s ret invastment in the associate), the
Group disconfinues recognising its share of further losses, Adallional Iosses are recognisad only to the extent
that the Group has incurred tegal or constructive oblgations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least armuclly,

For the purpose of impaiment testing, goodw is allocated 1o each of the Group's cash-generating units
[CGUs) expected to banefit rom $he synergles of the combination, Cash-generating units ta which goodwill
nhos been alocated are tested for impairment annually, or more fraquentty when there is an indication that
the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carmydng
amount, the impalment loss i allocoted first ta reduce tha camrying amount of any goadwill aliccated o the
unit and than to the other assets of the unit prosrata on the basis of the comying amount of each asset in the
urit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is mot reversed In o subsequent penod.
48

Sensitiyity: Internal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (continued)

Goodwlll {coniinued)

Frior to the cument year the Group's two Germman supsidiaries, BB and Mehr, were treated a5 separate CGUs.
This policy has been changed to recagnise BB and Mehr as one cormbined Maintand Europe CGU, aligning

tha CGs to the maonogement's divisional view of the Group's activities.
Impairment of non-current assats

At eqch balance sheet date, the Group reviews the camying amounts of ils tangible and intangible assets
to determing whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered animpaiment loss. Goodwil is
reviewed fof impairment at ledst annudlly.

Far the purpose of impasment testing, goodwill is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating unifs or
group &f units that are expected to benefit rom that business combingtion.

An impairment 1oss is recognised if the canmying amaount of the osset under considerafion exceads its
recoverable amount. Recoverable amaunt is the higher of fair vaiue less costs of disposal and volue inuse.
in assessing volue in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their praesent value using o
discount rote thal reflects current market assessments of the Hime value of money and the dsks specific to

the asset.

If the recaverable oamount of the cash-generaling unit is less than the cammying amourd of the unit, tha
impaiment ioss is alocated first 16 reduce the camying amaount of any goodwill and then o the other assets
of the unit prorata on the basis of the canmying amaunt of each assel in the unit, An impalmment oss

recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Investmeants in shows and co-produciion amrangements

Invastments in shows are stated at cost less amounts recouvped 1o date. and provisions for any amounts

which the diractors do not believe are recoverable,

Praduction qrrangements are reviewed on o praduction-by-production basis and treated bosed on the

principles outlined above as either o subsidiary, an associate or joint venture or joint anangement,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounfing pelicles {continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Froparty, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less deprecialion and accumulaled impairments.
Dapreciotion s provided at rates calcuiated to wite off the cost of tixed assats, less their estimated resicual

valus, on a skaight-ine bass over therr expected useful lives as follows:

Fraeeheld byildings abto 50 years
Leaschold property Shorter of leasehold term and wsefutlife of 40 to 30 vears
Fixtures and fittings 4o 19 yvears, of over the pericd to 1he end of the lease of the thealre

if this i shorler
IT Equipmenl 3to 5 years

No depreciation & applied to the cost of ussets in the course of construction. Treshold land s not
depreciated.

infongible gssels

intangible assets all have finiteé lves and are carried at cost less cccumuiated amortisation and
vecumylated impoirment losses. Amortisalion is recognised on a straight-ine basis over their estimated

useful lives and & recognised in the administrative expenses line lem.

The amontisation period for soffware is 4 years. The estimated fife of other intangibie assets is considered on
an asset-by-asset pasis gnd is Up to 10 years.

Inventory

inventory is valued at the lower of cost and nel reglisable value aftar making due aliowance for obsolete
and slow-maving items.

Financkal Instruments

Financial asse¥s and financical igbilities are recognised in the Consolidated $tatement of Finencial Position
when the Group becomes d party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs That are diracly attibutable to the goguisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liobiities, other than financial assets and financial labililes af fair volue through profit or koss
[“FVTPL"}. are added to, of deducied rom, the fair value of tha financial assets or financicl iabilities on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attdbutable 1o the acquisition of financial assets or financial iakifties
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK. PERIOD ENPFN 27 MARCH 2021

1. Slgnificant accounling pelicles (continved)

financial instruments (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cosh eguivalents comprise cash balances, calt daposils and escrow-type accounts. Bank
overdrafts thot are repayabie on demand and form an infegrat paet of the Group's cash management are
included as a component of cash and cash equivatents for the pumose of the Statement of cash flows.

Trade receivables ond accryed income

Trade receivabiles and accrued incaome are classified os foans and receivables ond are measured af
omortised cost using the effective inferest method. less any impgirment. Since trade receivables and
gccrued income are Wypically due within one year, and the effect of any effective inferest is immaterial, this

equates to initial canying value less any impoirment,
Borrowings

Loarns and Bomowings are initially measured at fair value, net of fransaction costs. They ore subsequently
measured at amaortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an
effective vield basis. The effective interest rate is a method of calculating the amortised cost of g financial
liability and of dllocated interast expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exacty discounts astmated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial Bability, or,
where appropriate, a sharter period to the net carving amount on imticl reCognition.

frade payobles and occruals

Trade payables and accrugls are chassified & ioans and receivobles and are measured of amontised cost
wsing the effective interest method. Since rade payables and occruals are typically due within one vear,

and the effactive of any effective interest is immateria), this equates to initicl camying value.
Finonciol guarantees

Fincmcial guarantee confracts are accounted for as insurance contracts.

Deforred incomea

Amounts received by the Group for services performed in fulwee are classiiied as defermed income ond
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income when the service is perfarmed.

Retirement benefits

Payments to defined confribution refiement benefit schemes are recognised as an axgense when
employees have rendered service entifling them to the contributions. Differences betwaen Contibutions
payable in the pericd and contributions actualy paid are shown Q3 either accruals or prepayments in

the balance sheet.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1.  Signiticant accounting policles (¢conlinved)

Revenue

Revenue is recognised at the for value of the consideration received or receivable ond represents
omounts receivable for goods and sarvices pravidsed in the namal course of business, net of discounts,

VAT and olher sales-related taxes. Revenue for the Group compnises several elements, including:
Venue renfal and production-related services

Charges to productions in respect of services provided [such as venwe rental and staffing) are recognised
net of sales taxes as those servicos are provided.

Revenue lrom production-relgled services is recognised al the date of performance of the show, unitil
which time it is held on the Statement of Financial Position as Deferred incorme,

Fromotional services

Trne Group acls as promaoter for self-produced shows and shows produced by third panlies. Revenue from
these services is recognised af lair vaive of consideration received, net of sales toxes, at the date that the
promaolional services are provided.

Marketing services
Revenue from the provision of marketing services is recognised at the Fair value of the consideration

received of receivable. The foir vaive of consideration tokes into account trade discounts, settlement
discounts ond volume rebates. Marketing services revenue s recognised net of scles taxes over the period
that services are provided, or as recoverable costs are incured, in accordance with the terms of the
contractugl agreement. When recorded marketing services revenue exceeds the amounts inveiced to
cleni, the excess is clasified s accrued incoma.

Ticket sales

Revenue from ticket sales represents the revenue eamned from commiissians, credit card charges and
similar charges. This revenue is recognised of the dale the ticket is sold.

Revenue from ticket sales whese the Group is acting as seling ageni (whether for its own theatres or for
other UK venues] includes booking tees. commissions, and similar additiond Incorne charged af the point
of sale. These amounts are recognised net of any sales taxes at the rarsaction date. Such revenue is
recognised as an ogent rather than principal transaction. ond so excludes the face value of the tickets
soid.

Refail saies

Revenue from concession sales 1o customens at the Group's venues s recogrised net of sales toxes at the
point of sale.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIQD ENDFD 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policlas {¢onfinuad)

Revenve {continved)

Cther revenue

The Group provides various other services on anad hoc basis, all of which arerelated (o its principal octivity.
Reiated ravenue is recogrised at fair value over the period that such services are performed and the
performance obligations are met,

Joint operations

in relation to co-production arangaments, where a controling or jeint operation irfersst is held, revenue
includas the Group's share of revenue for the production, Where no controliing inferest is held tumover
represents net income from productions. Where equity accounting & applied, the share of profit orloss
disclosed in the “share of results of associates and joint ventures™ fine.

Government gronts

Income om government grants is recognised as defered incoms and released ta the Consclidated
Stalemert of Comprehensive Income as the attached conditions are sotisfied. Where the grant ralates ta
procutement of an assel, the omount received is reledsed to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income over the useful life of the asset against associated depreciafion.

A malerial grant related to assets is presented in the statement of financlal position as a deduction from
the canying value of the relalied asset, with a consequent reduction in the annual charge tor depreciation,

COVID-17 related job retention schemes are considered within the scope of 145 20, with fudough receipts
recorded as areduclian in payroll expensss.

IFRS 14 lecses

The Group recognises q right-of-Use assat and a fease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is inificlly measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease Fability ad|usted for

any legse payments made at or before the commencement date, pius any initial direct cosls incured.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-ine method from the commencement
date. The estimated useful ives of the right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of
property, plant and equipment,

The lease fiabiity [§ initially measured al the present value of the leate payments that ore not poid at the
commencerment date, discounted using the Group's incremental borowing rate, The liabilty is subsequentty

adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease iability resuiting from reassessmeants or lease modifications.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in 'progerty, plant and eguipment’ and lease liobilities in *finance
lecses' in the statement of financial position.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

I. Significont accounting poiicles {confinuead)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not ta recogrise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assels. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on Q stralghl-line basis over the lease term,

Foreign cunencies

For the purpose of the consolidatad financial statements, the resulls and finoncial position of each Group
Company are expressed in pounds steding, which i the functional curency ot the Company, and the
prasentational curency for the consolidated financial statements.

smanetary assets ondg liabiities denominated in foreign cumencies are translated into stering al rates
of exchange ruling ot the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign curencies ore transiated into sterling
at the rate ruling on the date of the fransaction. Such exchonge gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Foreign exchange gains or losses on loans that are effectively investment instruments, such as wherg g
parent Company makes o loan with no repayment terms to a subsidiary holding Company as part of

acquisition consideration, are recognisec in ather comprehensive incorme.

Results of overseas subsidiaries are fransiated at average monihly rates, Assets and liabilities of overseas
subsidiaries cre transiated ot the rate ruling at the balance sheet date. Such exchange differences arsing

are recognisad in the transiation reserve and the Statement of Changes in Equity.
Opardting profit

Operating profit is stated alter the share of rasulls of associates but before finance income and costs, ather
gains and losses and faxes.

Fnonce Income

Finance income is recognised in profit or oss in the period in which it s earned.
FAnance cosls

Finance costs are recognised in profit or ioss in the period inwhich they dre incured,
Other gains and losses

Cther gains and |osses are recognised in profit or 1oss in the pericd in which they are incured.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Signiticant accounling policies (continued)

Pre-Production related casts

Expenseas incurmed prior toe g production going live which are directy cttibutable to the production of the
shaw are categeorised into either property plant and equipment and depreciated over the assumead useful
lite of the show, or ‘Other non-tangibie assets’, which are released to the Profit and Loss over the show's
useful Iife based upon the ratio of the curent pericd's revenues ta the estimated total revenues {Total
Production Revenue) lor sach production. Where estimates of Total Production Revenue decredses.
amortfization of pre-production costs may be accelerated. Conversely, if estimates of Total Production

Revenues were 10 increase then amaortization of costs may be slowed.

Taxation
The fax expense reprasents the surn of the tax cumently pavable and defered tax.

Current aond defemed tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which cose the curent and deferred tox
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equily respectively. Where cument tax or
defemred 1ax arses kom the initial accounting for o businass comibination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting tor the business combination.

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the period calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Detarrad bax is recognised on temporary differences between the camying amounts of assefs agnd liablities
in the consclidoted financial stutements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Defarrad tox liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred 1ax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable orofits will be available against which those deductible temporory differences con

be utilised,

Such deferred tax assets and labifities are not recognised if the termporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill, from the initial recognition (other than in o bustness combination] of assets and
iabiities in o transaction that alfects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit or investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and inferests in joint ventures, where the Group is able to control tha reversal of
the tempaorary difference and itis probable that the temporary difference will nat raverse in the foresesabls
future. The amount of defared tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlerment
of the carryving amount of assets and labilities. using tox rates enacied or substantively enacted at the
financial period end date. A deferred tax asset is recognised only te the extent that it is probabile that futune

taxabie profits will be avallabie against which the asset can be utllised.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITEP
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {conlinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

1. Significant accounting policles (confinued)

Provisions

Provisicns are recognised when the Group has a present chiligation {legal or constructive] as o result of o
past event, it i probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a refiable esiimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

2. Crical accounting judgements ond key souwrces of estimation vncertainty

In the applicalion of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note §, the Directors are
recuired 1o moks judgements, estimates ond assumplions about the carrying amounts of Qssets and
tabilities that are not readily apparert from ofher sources.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are

considered to be relevant. Actual resudls may differ from these estfimates.

he astimafes ond underlying cssumptions are revigwed on an ongoing basls, Revisions to occounting
gstimatas are recognised in the perdodin which the edimate is revised If the revisian affects anly that period.
¢rin the paviod of the ravision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgemenls
Going concern basis

in order to ossess whether it is appropriate for the Group to be reported as a going concem, the Directors
are requined lo make judgements regarding the Group's future frading performance, cash generation and
ability ta satisfy its financial obligations. Having undertoken appropriate enauiries and having considerad
the business activities and the Group's principal risks ond uncertainfies, the Directors concluded that the
accounts should be prepared on a going concembasis. Please refer ta the Directors' Report for our detailed
assessment of this matter.

Key sources of esfimaiion vncenainly

Canrying value of non-current assels

Impainment

The Group assesses the carnying values of property, plant and equiprment, and intangible assets annually.
Recoverability is dependent upon assumptions and estimates regarding markel conditions, fulure cash

fiows and discount rates, known as at the 27 March 2021 . A moterial change in assumplions may significantly
impact the potenlial impaiment of these assets.

An extension tc the dark pericd of 4 months would not genergte an impairment to any of the cash
genersating units {CGUs) but seduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122% of asset values of the UK, US.
Gemany ond Markating Services CGUs respactively. Further detail can be found in note 12,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

3. Revenwue

The Group's revenue from extemndal customers by classification i detailed below:

52 week period 52 week peroed
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020

£000 £000
VYenue Rental and Production Related Services 19.48% 230,058
Premotional & Marketing Services 15,898 115,478
Ticket and Retail Sales 5,458 119,547
Othear 4,798 11,454
Total revenue 41,441 476,747

The Group's revenue fram aexlernal customers by geogrophical lecation is detqiled below:

52 week perfiod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

202 2020

£000 £000
United Kingdom 21,091 213,847
Rest of Europe 10,949 123,473
North America 4,657 129,441
Asiq 2.944 2.984
Total revenue 41,641 476,747
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

4. Operoling (loss)/pecilt

Net loss for the period has been arived at after chamging/ [crediting):

52 week 52 week period

pariod ended ended 23
27 March March 2020
2021
£000 £000
Depreciclion of property, plant and equipmsnt 13 26,615 21,439
Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets -buikdings 13 8,801 8,759
Amaortisation of intangible fixed qssels 12 1.588 1.974
Impairment of property, plant and eguipment 13 - 7,154
Impairment of intangible assels 12 - 7776
Impairment of fong torm debtor - a.94/
Loss on disposal of property, plant ond equioment 13 2,816 -
Loss on digposal of ntangible assets 12 122 -
Invertory wiite downs 14 194 -
Cperating lease charges 7018 2,15
Staff costs & 38,487 137.810
Finance income 7 [1.546) {1,344)
Finance costs 8 47,682 30,926
Interest expeansa on IFRS 16 lease liabilities 8 6,390 6.547
§.  Avdilor's remuneration
The analysis of the auditor's remuneration i as follows:
52 week pedlod 52 week perod
ended 27 March endad 28
2021 March 2020
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company's auditer and thelr associates for the oudit of:
The consolidated and parent inancial statements 4463 418
The subsidiary financial statemanls 50 65
Total qudit fees 53 483
Faxation compiionce services - 7
Taxalion advisory sarvices - 10
Total non-gudit fees - 31
Total 513 564
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

&, Stalf cosls

The average monthly number of employees (including executive directors) was:

§2 week period 52 wesk penod
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
Oirectors 5 5
Venua staff 3176 4,349
Other 1,105 1,524
Total monthly average number of employees 4284 5,880

The averoge number of individuals with on empioyment contract in piace during the period fs
4,698. Of this population, the total menthly average number of employees paid through the
poyroll during the period s set out in the table above,

Thelr aggregate remuneration comprised; £'000 £'000
wages and salaries 3L 125.464
Social security costs 5,702 9.703
Other pansion costs 1.644 2,441
Yolal aggregote remuneration 38,487 137,810

Current yeor stoff costs are presented net of income from government support schames totaliing £41.3
miflion {2020: £nil).

Directors disclosed nere are only those employed by the Graup. so exclude board members employed by

the Group's shareholders.

The average monthly number of employees of the Company was five, being the executive directors
(2020: five].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

& Stalf costs {continued)

Remuneration of directars and key management personnel
Tha rermuneration of the directors and key management parsonnel of the Group s set oul below:

52 waek perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March ended 28 March

2021 2020
£000 £000
Remuneration of direciors:
Salaries. fees, bonusas, and benefils in kind 1,045 1,501
Money purchase pension contritbulions 2] 20
Total remuneration of directors 1.056 1,521
Remunevation of directors and key monagement personnel:
Remuneration 2,474 3.687
Sacial secunity contributions 349 513
Pension 54 &0
Yotal remuneration of diteclors and key monagement 2,879 4,260

personneal

Lay management pearsonnel are those who have significant influance over the operalional running of the
business. During the period, refirement benahts were accruing to two [2020¢ two)] directons in respect of
defined contribution schemes,

The highest paid director received remunergtion of E575,000 (2020: £735.000). The value of the
Caompany's contributions paid 1o a defined contribution pension scheme i respect of that individual
amounied to £4,000 {2020: £10,000].

During the period, directarns and key management persornel received tolal compensation for loss of office
totalling £1.157.000 (2020: £nil), an which social security of £143.000 {2020: £nil) was paid by the Group.

Pensians

The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group n an independently administered tund. The pension cost charge represents
contributions payabte by the Group 1o the fnd and amounted 1o £1,644000 {2020: £2,441,000].
Contibutions totailing £429.000 {2020: £340,000) were payable to he fund at the balance sheel date.

Employee benefit inust

The Group has no direct employee share scheme or share-based payment amangement. However, cerfain
empiovees of the Group have acquired an interest in the equity of the hoiding Company via an emplovee
benefit trust in both the curent and prior periods.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

7. Finance income

£2 week 52 week period

period ended ercled 28
27 March 2021 March 2020
£'000 £C00
Interest income 1.544 1,324
Unwinding of discount on long tem receivables and - 20
payabios
Finance Income 1,544 1,244
8. Finonce cosis
52 week perlod 52 week period
ended 27 March endad 28 March
202) 2020
£'909 £'000
Interest an loams from parent undertakings 1,090 1.841
interast on bank overdrafts ond locans 25,582 22084
Intgrest on obligotions under finance leases 4,995 4957
Interesi expeanse on IFRS 14 lecse habilities 6,390 6547
Arnortisation of financing fees 2,597 3.780
Foreign exchange loss/{gain} 13,418 {1734}
Finance costs 54,072 37473
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THL 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

?. Toxofion

Analysis of tax credt In the period

52 week 52 waek period

perad ended ended 28
27 March March 2020
2021

Curmrent tax £'000 £000
Tax {credit} f charge on lass for the period [173) 43
Prior yerar tax adjustment {1.333) t4,5709
Foreign tax in the period - 967
Total current tax {1.508) (3.172

Deterred tax 22
Deterad tax credit current vear (18.097) {8.333)
Change in tax rate - 2.760
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 11.419 743
Total defesrad tax (6.677) {4.810)
Tax on loss {8.183) {7.982)

UK corporation tax is calculated ot 19% (20200 19%] of the estimated taxabile profit for the perad. Taxation
far other furisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the respeciive juvisdictions,

There is Nil income tax impoct {2020; N} for items within other comprebensive income,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

9. Taxetlon {continuad)

Ther cradit for the period can be recanciled to the Consclidoted Statemant of Comprehensive income a5

follows:

52 week period 52 week period
ended 28 ended 30 March
March 2021 2020
£'000 £'00D
toss bafore tox {147,135} (33,907

Loss multiplied by standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of
19% {2020: 19%] {27 956 {6.442)

Effects of

Expenses not deductible for tax purposes [141) 3,564
Adjustrnents to tox charge in respect of prior periods 10,087 {3,807}
Non-quaiifying depreciation 728 -
Etfect of different rate for deferred tax - 2,760
Effect of averseas tax rates {2,683) {3,402}
Theatre tax credir {173) (%35}
Change in unrecognised deferred tax assets 11,970 -
Effect of foreign exchange {15) -
Cther reconciling differences - 280
Tax cradit toy the pericd {8,153) {7.942)

Tha closing UK defemed tax licbility as at 27 Morch 2021 has been calculoted at 19% reflecting the tax rate
at which the deferred tax liability is expected to become payable.

An increase in the UK corporation tax rate 1o 25%, effective kom | Apdl 2023, was announced in Rnance Bil
2021 which received royal assent on 10 June 2021 becoming Finance Bill 2021, This rate had nat been
substantively enacted at the balonce sheet date and therefore is not reflected in the tax calculations for
the year ended 27 March 2021, The impact of the rate change rom 19% to 25% would be to incraase the
deferred tax liabilly as at 27 March 2021 from £10,883,000 o £14,320.000.

Deferred kix ligbiities have not been recognised in respect of losses in overseas subsidiaries as it is not

probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be uliised.

Deferred tax aisets on caried forward unutilised losses in Australia of £2,392,000 (2020: £2.097.000), Germany
of £29,575000 (2020: £10819,000 recognised) and the US of £30,903,00C (2020: £nil) have not been

recognised.

Thare are carried forward unutilised tax losses in the YK of E87,382,000 {2020: £351,000). A deferred tax assel
of £16,536,000 {2020: £n1l) has bheen racognised as it s expected that these josses will be Utilised within the
next two years,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202]

10. Investments

Iho directly and indirectly held subsidiaries are listed in note 33,

Group As at 52 waek  As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 EDOD

Cost and net book value
Listed investments - |
Uniisted investrmeants 2178 4,355
Invesimenis 2,178 4,354
Company As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Cost and net book value
Subsidiary investments 413.835 262,575
Investiments 413,835 262 575

The Group's unlisted investments relate to its investment in Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company LLC, a
company incorporated in the United Stales of America of which the Group owns 1. 08%.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 20721

11. Interests in associofes ond joint ventures — Group

As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000
interasts in joint ventures 2631 515
Interests in associotes 697 1.004
inferests in associates and Joint ventures 3,528 1519

Joint ventures

The Group nas inferashs in severdl individually immateriol joint ventures which take the fom of both
productions and businesies. Each investment s shuctured as 4 separate vehicle and the Group has a
residual interest in the net assets of the investment, Accordingly. the Group has clossified its interests os joint
vantures. For some of the productions, the Group i entitled 1o less than 50% of the production sarnings

howeaver the production agreement requires unanimous consent in decision makimg resulting in joint control,

The following companies have o year-end dote different to the Group's accounting financial vear end of
27 Mmarch 2021

- HP West End: 31 October 2027
- JB UK Tour I 31 December 202
Train Times SF LP, 31 Decembber 2021
Train Times Broadway LP: 31 December 2021

This is s a result of the entities not falling under IEHL hence yaar end dotes may need to suit the requiremeants
of ol shareholders,

Far the purposes of opplying the equity method of accounting, the financial statements of HP West End {for
the year ended 31 October 2020], and JB UK Touw 1L, Train ime SF LP, Train Timeas Broadway LP (for the yaar
ended 3! Dacember 2020) have been used.

The joint ventures are not restricted in thelr ability to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends,

of to repay loans or advances by the entity.

The following table analyses, in aggregate, the carying amaount ond share of total comprahensive ncome

of these Joint Ventures.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE §2 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

11. Intarests In assaclates ond joint ventures ~ Group [continued)

As at 52 waek
period ended
27 Moich 2021

As at 52 week
period endad
28 March 20290

£000 £000
Canying amount of inferests In joint ventures 2,831 515
Share of total comprahensive Income {249) {702

Associofes

Carrying amount of Interests in associates

As at 52 week
pericd ended
27 march 2021

£'000
97

As at 52 week
percd ended
28 March 2020

£000
1.004

Share of total comprehensive income
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intanglble assets — Group

Total
Assels under Qlher - intangible
Software  construction intonglblas Assefs Goodwilt Tatal
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000

Cost
At 30 March 2017 14219 - 6,498 23,417 I7H954 399,31
Additons 2925 3,292 7447 13,668 - 13,448
Transfers 3,722 (3.222) - - - -
Exchange differences 3 - 462 445 4,565 5,030
At 28 March 2020 23,073 70 14,407 37,550 380,519 418,047
Additions 1.45) 2.892 20 4,363 1,434 5,798
Disposcls (1,084) - (3.86%) {4,953) - (4,953)
Exchange differences 158} - {758) [B15) {11.627) {12,443)
At 27 rMaarch 2021 23,282 2,942 %.800 35,144 370,324 406,470
Accumulated amontisetion and imgoirment
At 30 March 2019 8,255 - 3ac? 11,472 7.47¢9 18951
Charge for the 52 week period 1.541 - 433 1,974 - 1.974
Impairment - - 7,774 1.774 - 7,776
Exchange differences - - - - 310 314G
Al 28 raarch 2020 9,804 - 11,418 21,222 7,789 29,011
Charge for the 52 week period 1.917 - | 1,988 - 1,988
Disposcils {1,003} - {3.828) {4.831) - (4.831)
Exchange differences (47} - (797} {844) {347} (1.191)
A} 27 March 2021 10,673 - 6,862 17.535 7,442 24,977
Carrying omount
At 28 March 2021 12,709 2,942 2,938 18,809 342,884 381,493
At 23 March 2020 18,247 70 2,99 15,328 372,730 aa9.058

The amount of expenditures recognised in the canying amount of assets under construction is £2.9 mitiion

{2020: £3.3 million},

Other intangible assets relote to show rghts costs and pre-production related costs.

The Company has no intangible assets {2020: £nil).

Sensitvity: Interaal Use

67



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEX PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Intongible assels - Group {continued)

Goodwil acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition. to the cash genorating units
[CGUs} or group of units that are expected to benefil rem that business combination. The carrying amount
of goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs:

At 27 Moarch

204

£000

United Kingdom 24%,834
USA 60,076
sainland Europe w27
Marketing services 13.757
Tatal goodwdlt 3462584

The Group tests goodwill and Intangible assets annuailly For impairment, or more frequently i there aro
indications that goodwill might be impaired. Property, plant and equipment is ako tested for impairment if
there are indicators of impaiment, which there have been in the curent and prior year, The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs and the group of units are detemined rom value in use calculations.

The impairment reviews for United Kingdom, USA, Maoinlond Europe and marketing Services do not indicate
any impairment against gocdwill, other intangibles of property, plant ond equiprent.

The key assumplions and resulting atiiibutes of the impokment review are os follows:

tnfed Malniand Marketing
£Ms Kingdom USA Evicpe Services
Goodwil 245.8 40.1 92 13.8
PPE / Other inftangibles 2478 943 440 B.7
Total assets 497.4 154.9 852 22.5
WACC assumption 10.4% 110% 10.0% 10.4%
GDP growth 20% 20% 2.5% 20%
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

12. Infangible assets — Grovp (cantinved)

The values for the key assumptions were arived at by taking into consideration historical information and
comparing to extemal sources where appropriate, such os market rates for discount factors. GOP growth
rates are used gs the termingt value grawth rate in calculating the net present values of the respective

CGUs, while the inflation rates are oppisd as the base growth factar for years 2 10 4,

Budgeted cash flows - the calculation of value in use has been boased on the cash Hows forecast in the

Group's latest five yvear plan.

The five year plan assumes that COVID-19 continues 1o disrupt the Group thraugh FY22, with varying re-
opening dates across aur tenitodss starling from October 2021, The Group's cash flows are forecast to return
to pre-COVID- 19 lavsls in FY23.

The following sensitivities were appiied to the impairment test:

Sensltivity 1 - dark perod: A plausible extersion to the dark period of 6 months would not generate an
impaiment to any of the cash generating units (CGUs) but reduces headroom to 21%, 103%, 289% and 122%

of assat values of the UK, US, Maoinland Europe and Marketing Services CGLUs respectively.

Sansitivity 2 - discount rate; A five percentage points increase in the discount rate would create an
impairmment to the UK CGU ond reduce headroom 10 34%, 143% and 51% of asset values of the LS, Mainlond
Eurcpe and Marketing Services CGUs respectively,

The increase In discount rate required to create an impairment to each CGU is; 3K 1%, US 8%: Maintond
Europe 21%: and Marketing Services 10%.

This sensitivity wos aiso tested at @ venue level. A five percentage poinds increase in the discount rate
would create impaimments to four UK venues, one US venue ond one Mainland Europe venue.
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INTERMNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

13. Property, plant and equipment - Group

Right Long-term Shor-lerm Fixtures
Freehold ofUse Ileoyehold Jleasehold  Assefsunder and
property Asset properly propety  construction titings Tolal
£000 £'000 £'000 £'090 £'000 £'000 £000
Cost
At 30 March 2019 143,606 - 140,488 22,3467 7.702 74,137 408,500
Additions 8221 - i0.228 592 8,553 16,145 43,73%
[FRS 16 ~ Right-of-use assel - 87.5%0 - - - - 87.590
Tronskers . - - - {10.257) 10,257 -
Exchange differences %02 3594 2581 (370) (53] (210} 4444
At 28 March 2020 172,729 91,184 153.4%7 22,58¢ 5%45 100329 544273
Additions 2,258 - 240 25 6,465 1.400 10,388
Disposcils {204] [255) {119} 783) - {25975 (27.336)
Transfer 43 - - - 18,874) 8,813 -
Exchange differences  [1,448] (5809)  (7.841) - (28] (2403} (17.529)
At 27 parch 2021 173,398 85,120 145,777 21,83 3.506 82154 5179
Accumulated depreciation and impalment
At 30 March 2019 16,536 - 24,740 4,347 - 114 77,037
Charge for 1he 52 week period 3429 8.75% 50583 598 - 12,359 30,178
Impairmant - - - - - 7.154 1,154
_Exchange differences - - 684 - - 295 ¥79
At 28 March 2020 20,245 8,759 32477 4,945 - 48,922 115,348
Charge for the 52 week period 6,514 8,801 5334 483 - 14,284 35414
Disposals {194} - 1 {770) - {23,445} (24,520)
Exchange differences 1275} (479 {1,653] - - [1.540 (3,747)
Al 27 March 20621 26,310 17,081 34,067 4,658 - 38,201 122,07
Carmrying omouni
At 28 March 2021 147,088 58,039 109,710 17,173 3,506 43,953 389,47V
At 28 Morch 2020 152,444 82,425 121,020 17,644 5,945 51.407 430,905

The amount of expenditures recognised in the corying amount of assets under construction 5 £4.5 million

12020: £3.4 mifion).

The Company has no property, plont and equipment {2020: £nil).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

14. Inveniories - Group

Asat 52 Asat 52 week
weaak period  period ended
ended 27 23 March 2020

March 2021
£000 £000
Firished goods af cost 662 1,395
Inventory provision {157) (351)
Finished goods and goaods lor resale 45 1,044

The Group wrote off £194.000 of inventory during tha yaar [2020; Znil).

The Company has no Inventory (2020; £m3).

15. Investmenis In shows - Group

Asal 52 weelk  As of 52 werek
peviod ended pericd ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Investments In shows 2,393 3.794

Investments in shows reflect the Group's investment in productions in which it does not have a contralling

interest.

The Company has no investrments in shows [2020; £nil),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENOED 27 MARCH 2021

14, Trode and otherreceivables - Group

As ot 52 week As ot 52 week
pericd ended period ended
27 March 28 March 20X)

2021

£000 £000
Notes receivable 2,656 10,964
Oher non-curent receivables 12775 12,352
Amounis receivable alter more than 12 months 22,431 23,318

The notes receivaple balonce comprises amounts receivable from counterparties in relation to the
financing structure of the redevelopment of The Hudson Thealre via a well-used arrangement creatod by
the US govermment to encourage financial instdutions to Invesl into redevelopment of historic buildings.
Interas) is receivabie af rates between 0.48% ond 0.5%. These will ba recoverable fFom the counterparties
either over the life of the instument or by trarsfer of leasehald interests, The long-term receivable relates to
a balance gcquired as part of the ACE acquisition and i a fee for theatre development sarvices provided
which will be poid over a number of years.

As at 52 week As at 52 week
period ended  pericd ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Tracle receivables 14,989 29,385
Prepayments and accrued income 6,611 11,6819
Caporaltion tax receivoble 4,747 3.037
VAT receivable 3.982 -
Other receivabieas 2,031 16,513
Amounts iecelvable within 12 months 39,340 §2,554

Other receivables include g related party balance of £3.7 milion due from the Group's parent company,
Iz Luxco S.o.nt [Lusembourg) (2020: £3.7 milion).

The Company had no rade ond other receivables (2020: £nil).

Al impaired trade receivables have been provided to the extent they are believed not to be recoverable.
The maimum exposure to credit sk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of receivable. The
Group does not hold any colloteral as sacurity. Asseds which are neither post due nor impaired are

considered Fully recoverable.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

16. Trade and other receivokies - Grovp {confinved)

Analysis of frade receivable ageing

Cradit risk monagement

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterpanty will default on its contractual chiligations resulting in Fnonciai
loss 1o the Group. As of 28 March 2020, some of the Group's trade receivablas were due and/or past dus
bul nat impaired. Theseg ralate 1o a number of indspendent custormars with ne materal concentration within
any one customer and no custornars who are of particularly high risk of default, The ageing analysis of these
trade receivables s as follows:

As at 52 weelk A5 Of 52 week

pediod anded 27 period ended
March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000
Up to 3 months 4.66%7 19,328
At & months 234 2,929
Over 6§ months 10,720 10,314
Total 15,8623 32,583

Asof 27 March 2021, the Group ailso hetd past due rade receaivables which had been provided for,

As at 52 week  As at 52 week
period ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £000
Up to 3 months 123 2078
3to 4 months 130 217
Over & manths 281 03
Total 434 3,198

Under IFRS 9, the Group 8 required to utilise objective evidence as well as consider forward tocking
information, such as the economic conditions in the countries where the Group operates, and the
probability of default when calculating expected credit losses. The maturty of financial assets is therefore

used gs an indicator as to the probability of default,

/3
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCI | 2021

17. Cash and cosh equivatents - Group

As ot 52 week As at 52 week
periad ended peariod ended 28
27 March 201 March 202G
£'000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents held in own accounts 182,872 130,214
Cash and cash equivalents held in escrow 2.560 8 849
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 139,045
The Company has £1 46,000 of cash and cash oquivalants (2020: £nil).
18. Trade and cther payables - Group
As at 52 week As ot 52 week
perlod ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020
2021
£'000 £000
Trade payables 26,434 37.155
Refered ncoms 113,802 142,356
Accruals 35.686 58,474
Gther taxation ond social security 2,007 4,915
Tax creditor }.981 2,104
Cther payabias B.73¢ 15014
Govemment grants received and not utilised 923 794
Trade and other payables due within 12 months 189,571 260,816

The Company has an intercompany payable of £11.0 million [2020: £10.9 milion) which is repayable on

demuand, no interest is charged.

The other payables balance includes payroll creditors and amounts due to production companies.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD CNDED 27 MARCH 2021

19. Borrowings - Group

As ol 52 week Asat 52 wesk
pericd ended pedicd ended
27 March 23 March 2020

2021

£'000 £000
Bank lears - senior debt 358,000 358,000
Bonk loans - revolving credit facility 69,370 6%.370
Total senlor debt 427370 427,370
Fair volue adjustmend / unamortised financing fees 16853 14,26)
Bank loans - other - 84,409
Shareholder loans 139,179 -
Bonrowings 583,407 526,040
Amount dua for setttement within 12 months £9.370 69,370
Amourd due for settiement ofter 12 months 514,037 456,670
Barrowings 583 407 524,040

The hank loans - senior debl, are secured by a charge over the assets of Intemational Entercinment
Finaonce Limiled, a subsidiary of the Company and the majority of its subsidiary undertakings. These loans
teqr interest at a rate which fluciuotes in line wilh LIBOR with o margin ranging between 4.25% and 4.75%
and are governed by a senior finance agreement with requisite covenants.

The Group also has loans from its shareholders totalling £13%.2m, including accrued mterast {2020; Nl
Interast is non-cosh paying and accrues at fixed rates ranging betwesan 4.0% and 10.0%.

As gt 52 week  Aj at 52 wesk
period ended period ended
27 March 28 March 2020

2021

£'000 £000
Bonk ioans - senior debt 427 370 427,370
Bark ioans - other - 84,409
Sharehalder loans 139,179 -
Fair value adjusiment 18,841 18.661
Unamortised financing fees [1.808) (4.400)
Bomrowings 583,407 526,040

The Company dogs not have any borrowings (20200 £ril).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obligations under finance leuses - Group

Asobt§2  As ot 52 week
week pericd period ended 28
ended 27 Marsh 2020
March 2021
£'000 £'000
Amounk dye within 12 months
Finance leases 4211 4,270
IFRS 14 leases 12,182 15.204
Obllgcmnm under lease liabililes 156,393 19.474
As ot 52  As gt 52 waek
waek pericd pericd ended 28
ended 27 warch 2020
March 2021
£'000 EQ00
Amount due after 12 moenlhs
Finance leases 84,556 84,429
IFRS 14 laases &3, 137 71,077
Obllgcﬁons undar lease liablities 149,493 157,704

finance leases - Group

Minimum lause payments

Present value of minimum lease

payments
27 March 2021 28 March 2020 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Within one year 4329 4,284 4,211 4,270
In Ihe second to fifth years 17,753 17,578 15,134 14,985
inclusive
After five years 400,673 405,639 73,986 73,476
422,755 427,503 23,311 92.731

Less: future finance charges {329,444) (334,439)

23,311 23,044 .31 2,731
Unamortised finonce costs {2.544) {2,145} {2,544} {2,165)
Prasent volue of lecse §50.747 50,897 90.747 Y0564
obligotions
Amount due within 12 months 4211 4,270
Amount due affer 12 months 84,554 86,629

0,767 90,899

The Group leases certain properties under finance fease arangsmeants. The average lease term is 75 years.

The Group doeas ot have the option ta purchase the properiies for a nominal value af the end of the lease

terms, and the Group's obligations under the finance leases are secured over the properties being leased.

Interast rates underlying oll obligations under finance leqses are Implicit rates ranging from 5.3% 1o 5.8%

[2020: 5 3% lo 5.8%).
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK FCRIOD EMDED 27 MARCH 2021

20. Obfigations under finance leases - Group {continved)

IFRE 14 lease llabiltles - Group

As al 52 week Asal 52week
perlod ended period ended
27 March 2021 28 March

2020
£000 £000
Current 12,182 15,2014
Non-current 63,137 7,077
IFRS 14 leqse liabllity 75319 85,281

The weighted average incremenial bomowing rate opplied to measure lease labilities is 7.92%.

A3 at 52 week

period ended 27

March 2021

Molurity analysis £000
No iater than 1 year 12,182
Later than | year ond not later than 5 years 29,958
Laler than 5 years 33179
7531%

The Group dces not face a significant fguidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liablities are
monitored within the Group's trecsury function. Overall the voriable payments constifute up to 5% of the
Group's entire lease payments. The group expects this ratic to remain constant in future yvears. The varicble
payments depend on ticket sales and consequently on the overall economic developmeant over the next

few years. The total cash cutfiow for leases amounted t¢ £13.4m {2020: £13.6m),
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

21. Provisions - Group

Acquisition- Dilapidations Refunds and Other Total

reiated Ticketing

provislons Provision
Group £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'060
At 30 March 2019 11,341 433 - 712 12,684
Addilions - 2,611 11,241 - 13.852
Uilisedfreleased {1.055) - - - {1058
At 28 March 2020 10,284 3244 11,241 712 25483
Addifions - 226 77 1142 3.88%
Foreign exchange adjustments (451) 20 - - {794)
Utilisod freleqsed - - {10,804] (190) (12777}
Al 27 March 2021 9,835 3,4%0 812 1,684 15801

Acquisition-related provisions relate tc earn out agreements inrespect of the acquisitions of Mabrl Group.
The consideration is payable dependent on success factor criteria over the naxt bwo yvears,

Ditapidations relats to the expected level of dilapidations mainly related to central offices. The adequacy

of the provisions is periodically reviewed Yo ensure that they will meet the final obligations.

The Company has no provisions [2020: £nil].
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

22. Deferred tax - Group

Revalvallon Accelerated Acquisition Tax lostes Othertiming Total

of property tax Intangibies difarences

depreciation

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'900
At 30 pMaren 2019 24,457 [£54) 2199 {2.442) (1,618 21,942
Chargel{credit) to profit of loss 2,114 52 {73} ?12} {5.993) {4.810)
Al 28 March 2020 26,573 (402} 2,124 (3.354) {7.411) 17,132
Charge/{credit) to profit of loss (654) 842 {87} (13,182 6,832 (6,249
Al 27 March 2021 25,919 240 2,009 {14,534) (779} 10,883
27 March 28 March
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Detarred tax iabiitias 28,178 28,695
Deterred tox assets (17.315) (11.567]
Net deferred tax liabllity 10,883 17.132

Recognised deferred tax assets are expectad to be reclised by profits generated in future yearsin each

relevant tamitory,

The Company has no deferred tax [2620; £nilf.

23. Share copiial — Group and Company

Number of £1 Nominat
Qrdinary shares value
£'000

Auvtharised, Issued ond fulty poick
At 30 March 2019 and 28 March 2020 262,167 262
Net! proceeds of shares issued 151,240 152
At 27 March 2021 413,427 414

©On 14 October 2020 an additional 85,500 Ordinary shares were issued in the Company with a nominal value

of £1 each for a total consideration of 286k,

On 25 March 2021 on additional 65,761 Ordinary shares were sued in the Company with a norinal value

of £] each for a total consideration of £658k,
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS UMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

24. Notes lo the cash flow statement

Nat cash generated by operaling activities

For the 52 week For the 52

perod ended  week period

27 March 2021 ended 28

March 2020

£'000 £000

Opearating floss) /orofi {54.609) 2,222
Impairment of Qssets - 14930
Amortisation of intangible fixed assels 1,988 1.974
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 26,615 21,439
Depreciation charge for ighi-af-use assets - bulldings £.80 8.75%
Share of results of associates and joint ventures {249) {(702)
{Oecrease}/increqse in provisions {9.682) 2,959
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital [67,138] 58,581
Decreqsa/(increose] in inventorias 53¢ {125
Decrease in receivables 24,081 1,815
{Decrease)fincrease in payables {¢8.147) 8.964
Cash flow Fom operaling aclivities {110,663) 69,237
Corporate tox received/|{paid) 2,137 {7,002
Net cash flow from operaling activities {108,526} 62,235
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERICYD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

Z4. MNotes tc cash llow statement {(continued)

Net debt raconcHation
As at 52 week As at 52 waek
petiod ended 27 porod ended 28
March 2021 March 2020
£000 £'000
Bank loans - senior debt {358,000) {358.000)
Bank loans - ravolving credit facility (69.370] {69.370)
Tolal senlor debt (427,370) (427,370)
Fair value adjustment/ ungmeriised financing {16,858} {14.241)
feas
Bank logrs - other - {84,407}
Shareholder loans (139.17%) -
Obligatians under ingnce ledseas (1446.086) {177.180}
Totad debt (749,473} (703.220)
Cash and cash equivalents 185,432 139,045
Net debt {584.081) (564,155)
Movement In net debt
Cash at bank Delbt Total
£'000 £'000 £000
Net debt as gt 28 March 2026 139,065 (703.220) (544,155}
Cash flows 48,339 138.406; 9,933
Foreign exchange adjustments (1,972 - (1,972}
Other non-Cesh movement - {7.867) {7.867)
Neat debt as ot 27 March 2021 185,432 (747,493} (564,061}
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCiAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

25, Contingent liabilitles

A corporate cross guaraniee of the senior debt exists between the Company and the majonty of its
subsidiary undeftakings. The senior debl is secured by o debenture over the majority of the assets of the
Group. The Group dise has in place various guarantees across i1s porifalio, which are typical of commercial
and propenty rental agreements,

24, Contingent assets

At the baolance sheet date the Group had applied to the Geman government for COVID-192 related grant
income. At that date management deemed it probable that the applicabon would be successtul, with
expected fiure iIncome of €10.8 milion.

27. Commitments

Capltat commiiments

At the bolonce sheet date, the Group had malerial contractual commitments for capital expenditure of
£nil {2020: £nil).

28. Financlal sk management

Capltal risk management

The Group's objeclives when monaging coplital are to maximise sharenolder value whiist sofaguarding the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. In commaon with other privale eguity porticlio companies,
the Group canies o high Jevel of net debt compared to equity. Total capital is calculated as total equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of position, plus net bank deb!. Net bank debt is calculated as the
totat of long ond short tesm bomewings as shown in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, less
cash and cash equivalents,

Financlal rlsk management objeclives

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including currency risk, interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk.

The Group's overall risk manogement pregramme focuses on minimising potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance.

Dascriptions of the financtal risks ond how these ¢ré managed and mitigated are included in the Strategic
Repord cnpages 11 and 2.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (conlinued}
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

2¢. Finoncial risk management {continued)

The below table demonstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably pessible change in interest rates and foreign
exchonge rates.

Financial rlsks Sensitivity analysis

irterast rate risk An increase/decreqse of one percenfage point in LBOR would
increase/decremse the Group's loss by £4,087,000 (2020: £5,117,000).

Foreign exchange Hod GBP strengthened against the US dollar by an additional 1% during the
risk period, assuming ol other variables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £288,.000 {2020: £191,000].

Had GBP strengthened against the Euroe by an additional 1% dunng the
perod, assuming all other variables remained constant, the Group's loss
would have decreased by £1 10,000 {2020 increase of £352,000).

Liguidity

The fallowing tables detal the Group's contraclual matwrities for s financial liabifities with agreed
repayment perods. The tabies have been drown up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
iobiities and based on the earliest dale on which the Group con be required to pay. The table nciudes
both interast and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are flogting rate, The undiscountad
amcunt is derived from interest rate curves at the balance sheet date. The Group is not party to any

defvative cantracts,

less than 1
year i-Ayears 5+ yaars Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
27 March 2021
rade and other payablas 72,8465 - - 72,8465
finance legse liakitties 4,329 17.753 400,673 422,755
Borowings 69,370 514,037 - 543,407
Yotal cash-seftled lakilities 146,564 531,790 400,673 1,079,027
28 March 2020
Trade and other payables 115,104 - - 15,108
Finance lease ligkiitles 4,284 17573 405,639 427,503
Borowings &9.370 456,470 - 526,040
Total cash-selfied liabilliies 188,762 474,248 405,637 1,068,649

The Company has na relevont cash-settied assets or liabilities and so has no fiquidity risk.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

29. Financlal instruments

Categorias of finoncial instruments

Cash and Financial Total
recelvables Gabliities at
omortised cost
£'000 £000 £000

27 March 2021
Cash and cash equivaients 185,432 - 185.432
Trade and other receivables 39.340 - 37,340
Hnanclol ossels 224,792 - 224792
Trade and other payables - 74,8446 74,844
Bomowings . 583,407 583,407
Obligations under finance leases - 166,086 148,084
Financial labBies - 824 33¢ 824.33¢%
Net financial assets/{llablMes) 224,792 (824,33%) {599.547)
28 March 2020 )
Cash and cash equivalents 139,085 - 139.045
Trade and other receivables 42,554 - 62,554
Financlal assels 201,41¢ - 201,619
Financloi lablities
Trade and olher payabilas . 117.210 117,210
Borrowlngs - 526,040 524,040
Obligations under finance leases - 177,180 177.180
financial Habilties - 820,430 820,430
Net inanclial assels/(Habiliies) 201,419 (820.430) {518.811)

Fair valve measurements

The directors consider that the camying amounts of finoncial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

amortised cost in the financid statements approximale to their fair valuas.
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continved)
FOR THE 52 WEFK FERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 202}

30. Confrolling party

The Company's ultimate parent company is IELuxco 5.a.r.l [Luxembourg). which is confrolled by Providence
Equity Pariners VR A LP {Cayman Blands) and Pravidence VIl Giotsal Holdings LP {Caymon klands). The

Dwectors consider these parties to be the conirofing party.

31. Related party transactions

Group
Transae tions with direciors ond key rmanagement personnel

Remuneration paid to the directors or other, who are considered to be key management personne), is

disclosed in note 6.
Troding fronsaclions

Duwing the pearnod, the Group provided productionbelated services to associates and joint venturas of
£328.562 [2020; £51.875). Al the end of the period, bolances of £1, 951.044 (2020: £115,585) were owed to
the Group by the associales and joint ventures. These balances are unsecurad ond will be setllad
pericdically over the cowse of the production. There are curently no provisions relating to these balances.

These transactions have been conducted of arm's length.
32. Events aler balance sheet date

On 10 December 2020, IEHE US Holdings, inc. entered into o sale and purchase agreement for the
acquisifion of Brogdway San Francisco, LLC and Nederlonder Detreit. LLC for consideration of £173.9
million. On 29 Marcn 202) the conditions were met to define the acguisition date of this fransaction.

This ocauisition adds two theatres in San Froncisco and three in Detroit to the Group's portfolio of owned

and operated yenues.

Subsequent to the period end the Group received €5.4 milion of COVID-1? related govermment grant
income from the German governmant.

85

Sensitivity: Inkemal Use



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinuved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2023

33. Subsldiary entitles, assoclates and joint ventures and investments

Subsidiaries

100% of the ordinary shore capital of all subsiciaries is owned direchy or indirectly unless otherwise indicated.
Where indicated, shareholdings are effeclive ownership percentages as heki by the parent jle. i o
subsidiary halding company is 0% owned. and owns 100% of ol its subsiciaries, all subsidianes are shown as
being 0% owned].

incorporated in Ualted Kingdom

Al subsidiades have taken the s477a exemption from audit under parent company guarantee.

Subsidiary undertaking % Shares hetd Princlpal activity

Direct iInvestments

Intemational Entertainment Midco Limited” Hoelding company

Indirect Invesiments
AKA CP Limited? Marketing services
AKA Group Limited® Holding company
AKA NYC Limited? Marketing services
AKA Promotions Limited: Markebng services
ATG Entertainment Limited? Holding company
ATG London Limited? Theatre operator and

ticketing company
ATG Management Limited? Domnant
ATG Productions Limiled?® PFroduction company
Aylesbury Watesside Theahe Limite gt Theotre operater
Churchill Theatre Bromlgy Limited? Theaire operator
CP Studio Limited? Marketing services
Digitc) Media Services UK Limited? Digital media services
Encore Intemational Merchandise Limiied? Merchondisar
First Family Entertginment LLP? Production company
G.S Lashmar Limited? 0% Domant
Glasgow Theatres Umited? Theatre operator
Highland fling Japan Limited® Dormant
Internalional Entertainment Finance Limied’ Holding company
International Entertainment investments Holding company
Limited!
Lendon Theatre Cluk Limitad? Domont
London Tumshde Limited? Dormant
Miltor Keynes Theatre Limited? Theatrs cperator
New Wimbledon Theatre Limited® Thaatre operator
Playhouse Theatre Limited? Theatre operator
Richmond Theatre Limited® Theatre operator
Savoy Theatre Group Limited?® Holding company
Savoy Theatre Holdings Limited? Domant
Savoy Theatre lmited? Thealre opearator
Screenstage Limited? Dormant
Scroenstage Productions Limiteg? Cormant
Smart Plays Limited® Domant
Sonig Friedman Productions Limited® Production company
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continved)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary antities, assoclales and jaint ventures and investments {continued)

SFP Draams Limited?

SFP Shows Limited?

SFP Sunny Limited?

Stoke-on-frant Theatres Limited?

The Ambassador Entertainment Group
Limitegd

The Ambassador Theatre Group LUmited?*
The Ambassador Theate Croup [Venuies)
Limited?

Thea Amibassadar Thedire Group Overseas
Holdings Limited?

Theatre Management (Hoidings} Limited?
Theaire Monagement Limited®

The Duke of York's Theatre Umited?

The Ticker Machine Group Limitec?
Theatre Royal Brighton Limited?

Walter's House Limifed?

Woking Tumstyle Limited?

tncorpeorated In USA

Svbsidiary underaking

ACE Theatical Groug, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprisas, LLC?

Arts Center Enterprises - Brookiyn, LLC?

Arts Center Enlenprises — New Qrdeans, LLC?
Ants Cenler Enterprises — Sugar Land, LLC Y
Ambassador Theatre Group — NY, LLC?

ATG Colonicl, LLCZ

ATG San Francisco

ATG Tickeds US, LLCS

Credtive Partnership LA, iInch?

Encore Merchandising, Inc!e

Hudson Theatre, LLC®

IEHL US Holdings Inc?

Kings theatre Developer, LWCT

Kings Theatre Manager, LLCS

Lyric Theatre, LLCS

Majestic Presents LLC7

Suenger Aggregator Leverage Lender, 117
Saenger Thealre Developer, Inct

Saenger Theatre Manager, LLCS

Saenger Theale: Master Tenant LLC
Saenger Theatre Partnership, Lid?

SFP-NY, LLC?

soenger Theaire Redevseiopment Company LLCT
sundance Productions, Inc?

The Ambassader Theatrs Group US Holdings, Inc*®
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% Shares held

Production company
Production company
Production compony
Theatre operator
Holding company

Haldirmg and productions

Theatre operator
Holding company

Helding company
Theatre operctor
Theatre ocperator
Ticketing agency
Theatre operator
Thealre operator
Theotre operator

Principal achvity

Management services
Thedalrs operator
Theaolre aperator
Theatre oneratar
Venue operator
Production compaony
Yeniue operator
Venue operator
Ticketing agency
Marketing senvices
Darmant

Thegirs operator
Holding company
Venue developer
Managing member
Thegtre operator
Theatre operator
Financing company
Venua developer
Mardging member
Theatre operator
Domant

Praduction company
Venue developer
Production company
Holding company



INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Svbsidiary anlities, associates and Joint ventures and Investments {continved)
incorporafed in Germany

The following subsidicries have elected o apply the exemplion availlable under §244, section 3 of the
German Commercial Code ond have not prepared and published financial statemeants under German
GaAF bacause they are included as fully consolidated subsidianias in the ATG Group financial statements.

Subsidiary underaking % Shares held frincipal aclivity
BB Entertainment Holding GmikaH® Holding company
B8 Group GmbH® Holding/Management

BB Promodtion Gmbh?

sarvices company
Promotions company

Bodyguard Yerwaltungs GmbH ™ Holding company
Bodyguard Musical GmbH & Co kKGi¢ Production company
ESMS GmbH? Morkating services

Fandango Musical GmbH?

On Stage Productions GmbH#

Mehr-BB Entertainment GmioH!S

Deutsche Eintrittskarten TES GrmbH'$

Deuvlsche Eintrittskorten TKS Service Centoer GmibH™?
Dirty Cancing Toumee Produklions GmbH & Co. KG*H
Mehr-BB Theater GmbH!s

MMS Mehrt Marketing & Sales GmbH™

Musical-Dome Verwallungs- und Belriebsgeseliscolt
mbHY

Starfight Exgpress GmbH'3
HF-Theater Produklionsgeselischaft mioH!'s
Dirty Dancing Gastspiel Verwoitungs GmbH!3

Preduction company
Production company
Holding company
Ticketing company
Ticketing company
Production company
Theater operater
Marketing services
Thegater operator

Production company
Production company
Holding company

incorparated in Australia
Subsidiary undertaking % Shares held Principal aclvity
AKA Promaotions [Australia) Pty Lid"! Marketing services
Encore Merchandise {Ausiralia) Py Limited!! Dormant
The Ambassador Theatre Group Asia Pacific Pty Production company
Limited'?
Assoclates and Joint Yenhures
Name Incorporated % Shares held  Principal aclivity
A SS. Concerts & Promotion GmbH Germany 49 8% Praduction company
HP West Engl Limitedd United Kingdom 25% Production company
B UK Tour Il Productions Lig? United Kingdom 0% Production company
ISA Show AGH Swilzerlong 0% Production company

a8
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INTERNATIONAL ENTERTAINMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (confinued)

FOR THE 52 WEEK PERIOD ENDED 27 MARCH 2021

33. Subsidiary entities, associates and joint ventures and invesiments {confinved)

Ciher invesiments

Name Incorporalac % Shares held  Frincipal activity
Cieven Investments ttd United Kingdom 10% Production company
Kings Theatre Redevelopment Company  USA 1.08% Verue developey
LLC

Maerlin Entertainments plc United Kingdom 0.00% Entertainment group
Stageservice Frankfurlum Main GmibH Gemmany 0% Production company

' These companies have o registered office of 28 St Gecrge Street, London WIS 2FA

*These companies have a registered office of 1 15 Shaftesbury Averue, Cambridge Circus, London WC2H 8AF
3Thesa companies have O registerad office of 209 Foor Alexander House. Church Path, Woking, Surrey
Gu21 6E)

+This company has o registered office of 5% Floor, B9 New Bond Street, London W13 1DA

sThese campanies have Q reqistered office of Capitol Services. Inc.. 1675 South State 51, Ste B, Dover,

DE 17701

sThese comparies have a registered office of Capitol Corporate Services. inc., 8550 United Plaza Bidg. || Ste
303, Baton Rouge, LA 70807

These companies have a registerad office of Capitol Cormporate Services, Inc., 206 E. 91h 5., Ste 1200,
Austin, TX 78701

BThis company has a reqQistered office of Filelkon, Lasky, Asan, Couture, & Ganise, Richard Garmise, 551
Eh Ave #805, New Yark, NY 10174

*These companies have a registered office of Rontgenstrale 7, 68167 Mannheim

tThese companies have o registered office of LandsbergstraBe 28, 50678 Kaln

"These companies have o registered office of Suite 4.1, Level &, 3 Bowen Crescent, Melboume, Victoria
3004, Australia

12This company has a registered office of Sulte 3, Level 1, 4 - 10 Bay Street. Doubls Bay, NSW 2028

Ihis company has a registered office of CarmenstraBe 12, 8032 Zurich

14This company has a regisierad office of Komaedienste, 1), 506467 Kdin

5This company has a registered office of Brkrather Str. 30, 40233 DUsseldort

* This company has o regisiered office of Bankssiralle 28, 20097 Hamburg

7 Trls company has a registered office of Goldgasse 1, 504648 KON

“Tnis company has a registered office of Stadionnng 24, 44791 Bochum

*This company has aregistered office of 1800 Post Oaok Blvd. 4 Boulevard Place, Suite 450, Houston, Texas
77056

®This company has a registered office of 1313 N Market §t., Ste 5100 Wilmingtan, DE 12801
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